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VREGRPORATED 1880

AAJAMAAT R
Proud Heritage
Badigded Faeforre

October 25, 2010

Honorable President Rigas
Members of the Board of Trustees, and
Citizens of the Village of River Forest, Illinois

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Village of River Forest, Illinois,
for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2010 is hereby presented to you. The CAFR strives to
exceed the basic legal requirements of state law, which requires that the Village of River Forest
(*Village™) publish, at the end of each fiscal year, a complete set of financial statements that
have been audited by independent certified public accountants. This CAFR provides additional
information to assist readers in understanding the Village’s fiscal condition. The accounting
firm of Wolf & Company LLP was selected by the Village Board of Trustees as the
independent auditors for the Village. The independent auditor’s report is provided at the
beginning of the CAFR, on pages 1 and 2. As the auditors’ report explains, the additional
information provided in the CAFR was not audited, although it was reviewed by the auditors
for information that might conflict with the audited information.

This CAFR provides individual fund information and also provides a government-wide view of
the Village’s financial activities for the 2010 fiscal year that includes the Village’s component
unit, the Library, and the Village’s pension trust funds. The Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A), located in the Financial Section of the CAFR, explains how this
information is presented and how it might be used to evaluate the Village’s fiscal condition.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the organization that establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards for local governments, notes that there may be
readers of this report that are not as familiar with the Village as residents may be. Foremost
among these are bondholders, financial institutions, credit rating agencies, educational
institutions, and other governmental agencies.  GASB has stipulated certain reporting
requirements that will help these readers better understand the Village’s financial information.
This CAFR presents the Village’s financial information in accordance with these requirements.

Responsibility for the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Village. To the best of my knowledge and
belief, this report is accurate in all material respects; it fairly represents the Village’s financial
position and results of operations; and it provides all the disclosures needed to understand the
Village's financial activities in fiscal year 2010.



Profile of the Gevernment

The Village of River Forest was incorporated on October 36, 1880, and is a non home-rule
community, as defined by the llinois Constitution. The Village operates under the
Board/Administrator form of government. This form of government combines the
leadership and policy-making skills of elected officials with the expertise of a professional
administrator. The elected representatives set the policies that cstablish the Village's
purpose, values, mission, and goals. The Village Administrator’s role is to implement
those policies in an efficient and effective manner.

Located approximately 10 miles west of downtown Chicago, residents have the benefit of the
employment and enfertainment cpportunities offered by the City of Chicago combined with
the benefits of a quiet residential community. The Village of River IForest has a land area of
2.5 squarc miles with approximately 32.2 milecs of streets. [t has a variety of businesses, a
medical care facility, two colieges, and dining and retail establishments that include
Walgreens, Starbucks, Qdoba, Jewe! Osco, Dominicks, Whole Foods, Petco, Gunzo's, CVS,
and Panera Bread.

The Viltage provides a full range of services to its citizens, businesses, and visitors. These
services include police and fire protection, ambulance services, water and sewer utilities,
building planning and zoning, the construction and maintenance of streets and infrastructure,
and general administrative services.

The Village’s sole enterprise is a water and sewerage system. This enterprise is funded
with charges sufficient to cover the enterprise’s operations. Property taxes are the
foundation of the Vitlage’s income for governmental purposes, providing about half of the
governmental revenue. The Management Discussion and Analysis, starting on page 3,
provides an overview of the Village’s diverse array of revenues in conjunction with a
review of its current financial condition.

Relevant Financial Policies

The Village established a reserve for working capital, which it has consistently maintained
for many years. The purpose of the reserve is to ensure that the Village has sufficient cash
for operations should there be a delay in property tax receipts. This can be seen as a reserved
fund balance in the General Fund, in the Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds on page 20).
Cash that exceeds current need, on the other hand, is invested. Note 3, Deposits and
Investments in the Notes to the Financial Starements, provides detailed information on the
Village’s investment activity in fiscal year 2010. Basically, the Village's investment policy is

to minimize credit and market risks while obtaining a competitive vield on its portfolio.

Liabitity risk is managed by maintaining sufficient insurance and also through routine
monitoring of potential loss situations. A safety committee, comprised of employee
representatives from each Village department, meets regularly to review accident and
injury reports involving employees. The safety committee makes recommendations and
suggestions to improve and promote workplace safety. The Village also participates in a
risk management program that is administered by the Intergovernmental Risk Management
Agency (IRMA). IRMA is a consortium of 75 local municipalities and special service
districts in northeastern Mlinois that work together to manage risk and fund their property,
casualty, and workers” compensation claims.



In 1986, the Village established a tax increment financed (TIF) redevelopment arca.
Initially, the Village took out general obligation debt to finance the area improvements.
The enhancements to the area have been so successful in increasing property tax values,
and the related incremental property tax revenue, that there were sufficient resources to
pay off all outstanding TiF-related debt in fiscal year 2610. In addition, a surplus of the
tax revenue was redistributed to ali local taxing entities that serve the Village's TIF area,
which includes the Village’s General Fund.

In fiscal year 2010, the Village made a decision to discontinue the TIF district by
December of 2010.  This will result in another one-time distribution of surplus property
tax revenues in fiscal year 2011, which will help all Village taxing entities to better
address the current unusual financial challenges.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) has
established a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Program for
state and local governments. The GFOA’s Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of
recognition for excellence in government financial reporting.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the Village of River Forest must go
beyond the minimum requirements of generally accepted accounting principles and prepare a
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that evidences the spirit of transparency and
full disclosure.

The Village earned the GFOA’s Certificate for the CAFR provided for fiscal year ended
April 30, 2009. It was determined that the CAFR for that year sufficiently applied the
appropriate generally accepted accounting principles, met applicable legal requirements, and
also satisfied the reporting requirements of the GFOA’s certificate program. A copy of the
Certificate of Achievement for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2009 is provided on page viL.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for only cne year. 1 believe this CAFR, for the fiscal
year ended April 30, 2010, meets the GFOA’s Certificate of Achievement program
requirements, and it will be submitted to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for the
Certificate of Achievement.

Acknowledgements

This CAFR is the result of a well-functioning team that admirably weathered fiscal
challenges and staffing changes. All Village management and finance department staff were
responsible for successfully maintaining good accounting records, which are essential to the
preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). The Village President
and Board of Trustees were diligent in reviewing the periodic financial reports, maintaining
an active finance committee, evaluating the Village’s fiscal condition, and making leadership
decisions, including staffing changes, to ensure that the Village maintains its sound fiscal
bearing.
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Nancy Caine, the Village’s Accounting Supervisor, and Joan Rock, the Interim Treasuorer
during fiscal year 2010, deserve special recognition for their competent contributions to the
completion of this CAFR. Joan Rock oversaw the year’s fiscal activity, provided financial
information to the Board, and helped to continue the Village’s sound financial accounting
after the prior Finance Director left the Village. Nancy Caine was a crucial element in the
maintenance of sound f{inancial accounting throughout the fiscal year, and also in the
proficient preparation of the work papers and reports needed for this report. Trisha Steele’s
assistance is also greatly appreciated, for her help in pulling together the end-of-year
information for this report. It is the careful and conscientious attention on all levels of
Village management and operational staff that has made the commendable preparation of this
CAFR possible.

Respectfully submitted,

o)

es L. Eggert
terim Village Administrator
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for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Village of River Forest
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For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
April 30, 2009
A Centificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public ecmployee retirement

systems whose comprehensive annuat financial

reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest

standards in government accounting
and financial reporting,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT



Wolt Company LLP N/

A Wolt Financial Group Member

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Viliage President and
Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of River Forest, illinois

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities,
the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Village of River Forest, Hlinois, as of and for the year ended April 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the
Village’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the management of the Village of River Forest, Illinois. Our responsibility is to express opinions
on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component
unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of River Forest, [llinots as of
April 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the
vear then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 16, and the required supplementary information
on pages 59 through 65, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited
procedures which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the supplementary information. Fowever, we did not audit the information and express no
oplinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpese of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Village's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nommajor fund financial
statements and other schedules, listed in the table of contents as supplemental information, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements, Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financtal statements taken as a whole.

I 200 Clearwater Drive  Qak Brook, Hiinois 60523-1947
GA0L45. 4500 main 630.574.7818 fan \&'\\'\\'.\VO“L‘pél.com



The introductory and statistical sections, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. This infornation has not been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no

opinion on it.
Aj Xg s C uyfww? Ler
i

Oak Brook, Illinois
October 25, 2010
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)

APRIL 30, 2010

The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), provides an overview of the financial statements and
an analysis of the financial activities of the Village of River Forest {the “Village™) for the fiscal year ended
April 30, 20010, The overview outlines the sections found in this report and the type of information found in
each section. The financial analysis provides:

(1) A focus on significant financial issues,

(2)  Anoverview of the Villages financial activity,

{3) Highlights about the Village's current financial position and its ability to address future
challenges,

{4) The identification of material deviations from budget, and

(5)  Concemns specific to individual funds.

Dverview of the Financial Statemenis

The financial statements in this report include both govermmeni-wide statements and fund statements. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) reporting model stipulates that the government financial
activities are presented in two ways: as government-wide accrual-based statements and as modified-accrual
fund statements. This overview providez an explanation of the differences between these statements.
Basically, the government-wide statements provide information on the financial condition of the Village as a
whole, while the fund statements provide information on the availability and use of resources that are

segregated for specific purposes.

The annual financial report also includes other elements that are essential to understand the statements.
These include the Notes to the Financial Statements, Required Supplemental Informarion, and the combining
and individual fund statements,

Crovernment-witle Financlal Statenrenis

The government-wide financial statements report the overall finances of the Village in a manner similar to
that of a private sector business. The government-wide statements are presented at the beginning of this
report. The Statement of Net Assets is on page 17 and the Statement of Activities is on pages 18-19.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish govemmental activities - those that are
financed primarily by taxes, and business-tvpe activities - those that are primarily supported by charges for
services. The Village's governmental activities include general government. public safety, highway and
streets, and sanitation. The Village's business-type activity is the water and sewer svstem. The government-
wide financial statements also include a separate presentation of the River Forest Public Library (“Librarv™)
financial activity because the Library is a component unit of the Village.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the end-of-vear balances of all the Village assets, liabilities, and net
assets, government-wide, Net assets are sub-divided 1o show how much is in invested in capital assets, net of
related debt, how much is restricted for enabling legislation, and how much is unrestricted. Ower time,
increases or decreases in net assets can help the reader to evaluate the financial position of the Village.

{5ee independent auditor’s report)
3



Overview of the Financial Statements (Continued)

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Village's net assets, government-wide,
changed during the fiscal year. Much like a private sector business, all revenues and expenses are reparted
regardless of the timing of when cash is received or paid out. For example, depreciation represents the
consumption of a non-financial assets and it is recognized as an expense in the government-wide statements.

Fund Financial Stafemenis

The fund financial statements can be found on pages 20 through 28 of this report. A fund is a balanced sei of
accounts that are used to track resources designated for specific activities or objectives. The Village uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate fiscal accountability and compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. Fund financial statements provide more complete and detailed information about the Village's
major functions and activities. All of the Village's governmental funds can be divided into three categories:

governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmemial funds are used to report the Village's services that are primarily tax supported. There are three
major governmental funds, the General Fund, the Pledged Taves Fund, and the TIF Economic Development
Fund, And, there are three non-major governmental funds: the Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) Find, the Capital
Equipment Replacement Fund (CERF) and the Aiternate Revenue Debt Service Fund., The govemmental
fund statements (on pages 20-23) provide information on cach of the three major funds, the three non-major
funds in aggregate, and the total for all governmental funds. More detailed information on each individual
fund, including budgetary comparisons, is presented in the section entitled: Combining Individual Fund and
Capital Asser Fimancial Statememt and Schedules, starting on page 66, The Library’s fund statements are on
pages 87 and 88, following the Village's fund information.

Governmental fund statements focus on the availability of current resources and how they are used within a
fiscal year, something like a checkbook. For example, if a fire engine is purchased with cash, the full
expenditure of cash is reported, Depreciation is not included in the governmental fund statements because
depreciation does not represent the use of current financial resources. Similarly, long-term debt is not shown
on the balance sheet for the same reason that an outstanding morigage is not shown in a checkbook — it does
not relate to the use of current financial resources.

The Village's Balance Sheet — Govermmental Funds is on page 20, Following it there is a reconciliation of
the total governmental fund balance to the total net assets shown in the Starement of Net Assets.  The
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fumd Balances (page 22) is also followed by a
reconciliation of the changes in fund balance to the changes in net assets, which is shown on the Statement of
Activities (pages 18 and 19).

Proprietary funds are presented in the same manner in both the fund statements and government-wide
statements, with depreciation as an expense and long-term debt included in the calculation of net assets. The
fund statements provided in this report provide additional detail. The Village maintains one proprietary fund,
an enterprise fund called the Waterworks and Sewerage Fund. The fund statements for the this fund can be
found on pages 24 through 26, in the Basic Financial Statements section of this report.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of
the government. Activities from fiduciary funds are not included in the Village's government-wide financial
statements because the Village cannot use the fiduciary fund assets. The accounting used for fiduciary funds
is much like that used for proprietary funds. The Village has two fiduciary funds: the Police Pension Fund
and the Firefighters® Pension Fund, each of which are managed by separate boards of trustees. The
combining fund statements, the Statement af Net Assets — Pension Trust Funds and the Statement of Changes
in Net Assets — Pension Trust Funds can be found on pages 27 and 28 of this report.

{See independent auditor’s report)
4



Overview of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes to the Financial Statements section follows the Basic Financial Statements. It provides additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The Neves o the Financial Statements can be found on pages 29 through 58 of this
report.

her Information

The Reguired Supplementary nformation can be found on pages 59 through 64 of this report. Information
concerning the Village's progress in funding retirement benefits is a pant of the required supplementary
information, There are schedules of funding progress for the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (page 59),
the IMRF SherifTs Law Enforcement Personnel Fund (page 60) the Police Pension Fund (page 61}, the
Firefighters” Pension Fund {page 62) and the Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan (page 63). Also, there is
a Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Chartges in Fund Balances - Budger and Actual for the General
Fund. This schedule shows the original and final budget as well as a comparison with the fiscal year 2009
actual amounms. Notes fo the Reguired Supplementary Information is on page 635,

Combining and individual find statements and schedules can be found on pages 66 through 83 of this repont
along with additional schedules regarding the Village's capital assets.

Government-wide Financial Analvsis

The following analysis focuses on the Village's most significant financial issues in fiscal vear 2010, It
provides an overview of the Village's financial activity, discusses the Village's current financial position and
its ability to address future challenges. identifies specific concems to individual funds, and it also explains
material deviations from the Village's original budget.

Net Assets. The following table provides a comparison of the basic information provided in the Statements of

Ner Assets, current vear to the prior vear, for the Village, the primary government, and its component unit,
the Library of River Forest (the “Library™L

{See independent auditor’s report)
5



Government-wide Financial Analvsis — MNel Assets

Comparative Schedule of Net Assels

April 30, 2010 and April 30, 2009

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Taotal
= FY e FY I FY 2010 FY 2009 FY 2000 FY 2009

Primary Government = Filloge
Assets:
Currend S 17.578.317 18,638 887 1584 445 210823 19,162,762 20,739,710
Capital, net of depreciation 17145355 16,863,300 5,751,075 5.537.910 1296430 22,401,210
Total assets_ 34.723,672 35501187 7335520 7638733 42059192 43.140.520
Liababinies:
Current 3,556,798 3.654.310 86,712 172218 3,743,510 3,926,528
Moncurment 2,271,770 3, 035,478 1.376, 187 1378 4Th 3,647,957 6,513,954
Total Habilities 5818568 B, 789,788 1,562 599 1650694 TA01 46T 10440482
Mt Asscls

Invested in capital assets,

pet of del 16505 843 D2 63,300 4,781,583 4,182,910 20, 28T 4% 175,210

Restricted TA04,392 10,007,290 TADLET2 10,007,290
_ Unmestnicted 4984, 360 3840 B0 w038 1,805,120 5.975.407 5645938
Total net assets, Village 5 IRB95.104 26712399 £.TIL.621 5088039 667,75 31, 700438
Companent Lnil = Library
et Assels:

Iewvested in capital asscts,

mel of diche 5 2B4ZI1TH 302 431 2B42.1T9 3002430

Unrestraciod 1,480,226 1,355,314 1.481.236 1,355,314
Total net assets, Library 5 4323405 4357745 4333405 4357748

In the current fiscal year, FY 2010, the Village's net assets increased from $32.7 million to $34.7 million, an
increase of 6.0%. In the prior fiscal vear, FY 2000, the Village's total net assets alzso increased. Both of
these imcreases are primarily due 1o the matwring TIF Area.  Incremental tax revenues increased, TIF
resources were used to improve Village assets, and in FY 2010, the Village paid for all of its outstanding
TIF-related general obligation debi.

The net assets from governmental activities, which includes the TIF funds, increased $2.2 million in FY
2010. This follows an increase of 32.8 in FY 2009. Total Village assets reduced by $1.1 million, but paying
off the outstanding TIF debt reduced liabilities by $2.96 million, netting an increase of $1.8 million in net
assets. In FY 2011, the Village will have completed the TIF Arca improvements and will discontinue the tax
incremental financing process. Any remaining uncommitted TIF area funds will be returmed o the County
for distribution to all taxing entities inside the TIF area. Therefore, net assets for the TIF Funds, and the
Village as a whole, will decrease by the amount returned to the County and the discontinuation of
incremental tax receipts in FY 2011,

Net assets decreased by about $215,000 in the Village's business-type activity, water and sewer services. The
following table, Schedule of Changes in Ner Assets, shows that there was an operating loss of 166,626, The
Village did increase its rates to pass-on the increases in the cost of water, which it purchases from the City of
Chicago, but water usage was lower than expected. In addition, the interest expense and disposal of fixed
assets exceeded investment income by almost 549,000 in FY 2010,

{See independent auditor’s report)
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Governmeni-wide Financial Ana

= Met Assets (Continwed )

The net assets of the Library, the Village's component unit, decreased by only 0.8%, $34.340,

Changes in Net Asseis. This table summarizes the revenues and expenses of the Village and Library
activities, and shows the amount of funding provided by general revenues. General revenues include items
such as taxes obtained by local ordinances or imposed and shared by the State of lllinois.

Comparative Schedule of Change in Net Assets
For the Fiscal Years Ended April 30, 2000 and April 30, 2009

Activities Activities Totals
FY Zing FY 2 FY 1010 FY 3% L] __FYIme
VILLAGE - PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Activity Revenue overf{under) sctivity expenses
Gevernmenial acirvities:
Grenersl povermmeeni 5 (594637100 (2504, 186) (5,506,371} (25014, 186
Pulhlic safcty (T 216067k 16,987 Bi1) (7,206,067) 68T B6I)
Highways & sirecls i I 400 S60 (2007, 7640 {1,400, 5640) {2,117, 764)
Sandation 26 Tik (304.532) 26, T4 (30,532}
Intgrest expenis (123843} {190,534) {F22.EE7) {150 3360
Husaness-pe acIVithes:
Water & wewer servioes (2328795 1936140 (23250 (198614
Tetal deficwency of Vallage
BENHTY PEVERRICY DVET
MINEY CApEnses IH_.ﬁS'?J'-'TP Li;l 14,681 (232579 I!I"-'?LEH i 14 892 05h) (12 313 295)
General Revemnes:
Liszal tancs 11, TH8. 239 10,221,53% 11,768,239 |0.23 1,535
Intergovernmental rovenuc 1983 409 4 564,653 IR 499 i 564 653
Miscellancous income 458 596 (RS 1 458 496 114,517
Invesimeni moome k] ;-IH ﬁgﬂ 174461 (7542} HH_IE A% 650
Total general revenmes 1684862 14988207 17461 (1.642) 16,859,343 14,950,655
Changein netassets, Village  § 2183703~ TR43L616 A215A418) (06.256) 1967387 1637360

LIBRARY- COMPONENT USIT

Activity Revemue everffumder] activity expenses
Govermmental sctivizies:

LLibeary b {1, D48, T40) i1.1 IF-‘-£‘-'FI {1148 746 {11146 295)
Giemeral Kevenues:
Local laves 1,079,207 q15 681 1,075 207 Q158K
Miscellaneomis meomss 27,517 21 455 27.537 21438
[Ervenimsend mcene 7662 16,575 TAh6Z 16374
Total gencral revenucs 1,104 406 a53.711 1.0 14,40 G370

The financial goal of the business-type activity is to break even; that is, to charge an amount for services
sufficient to cover the cost of providing the water and sewer services. Governmental activities. such as
pelice, fire protection, street mainienance, and the general governmental functions to administer
governmental services, are primarily tax supported. The Statement of Activities, on pages 18 and 19 of this
report, provides additional detail on the amount of program revenues which include both charges for services
gs well as operating grants. It also provides additional detail on the general revenues, such as the local and
state taxes imposed on the Village to support the governmental services provided.

{See independent auditor’s report)
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Government-wide Financial Analvsis (Continued)
Revenues — Village-wide

Village-wide, fiscal vear 2010 revenues are 321.9 million, 2.3 million over the prior fiscal year revenues.

The majority of the increase is due to the out-of-the-ordinary distribution of surplus from the TIF Fund, The
Village declared a surplus amount in the TIF Fund, returned the surplus to the State and County. and then the
Village received a distribution in proportion to its place among all local taxing entities. The Village
anticipates receiving one more surplus distribution in fiscal vear 2011 when the TIF Area will be completely

dissolved.

The Library. the Village's component unit, is primarily dependent upon property taxes and is not included in
this revenue analysis. The amounts of Village revenues, excluding the Library, were as fiollows:

Local taxes £ 11,768,239
Intergovernmental revenues 3,983,499
Miscellaneous Income 458,896
Investment income 68,709
Governmental activity charges for services 2,481,840
Governmental activity operating grants 366,036
Business-type activity charges for services __ 2216712
Total Revenues - Village-wide 5 21,923,931

The Village's revenues come from a variety of sources, as shown in this pie-chart.

Total Village (Primary Government) Revenues

Gowemmental Hutintds -ty po
Bolrdly OREEEY) acinity charges for
gy f senices
Fir | k[
Govwermetal achty
Charges for Serdoes
1% ™

T

Local taves are those taxes levied by the Village Board o support Village governmental activities. These
revenues include property, utility, and transfer taxes. Local taxes provide about half of the funding for the
Village. The largest single source of local taxes is property taxes, Property taxes provided $1 1.0 million in
funding for fiscal year 2010. Property taxes support governmental activities such as police and fire
suppression, debt service, and contributions to pension funds,

{Sce independent auditor's report)
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Governmeni-wide Financial Analvsis (Continued)
Government-wide Financial Analvsis - Revenues - Village-Wide (Continued)

Imtergovernmental revenues include taxes imposed by the State of [llinois, such as sales and income taxes,
and grams. About 18% of the Village's funding comes from intergovernmental sources. Income fax
revenues have dropped over the last two years as a result of the current recession. In fiscal year 2010 the
Village received S897.371; in fiscal year 2009 it received $1.024.643; and, in fiscal year 2008 the Village
received $1,096,207 in income taxes from the State, Fortunately, the closure of the TIF Area will result in a
greater share of sales taxes available for general operations. In fiscal year 2010, the Village discontinued the
commitment of sales tax 1o the TIF areq. This resulied in shift of sales tax revenues from the TIF Fund to the
General Fund. (See the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Governmental
Funds on page 22 for specific fund information.)

Business-type charges for services are fees for water and sewer services. Operating revenue was $2.3 million
for both fiscal vears 2009 and 2008, and in fiscal year 2010 it dropped slightly to $2.2 million. A mid-vear
rate increase averted a more serious drop in revenues. A combination of cooler and wetier summer scason,
along with conservation efforts by consumers, have contributed 10 the flat revenues for the business-type
activity.

Governmental charges for services are fees for governmental services which primarily benefit a specific
consumer, such as building permits. About 11% of the total revenues are charges for these types of services,
as seen in the chart on the previous page.

Expenses — Village-wide

The expenses reported on the Statememt of Activities are reported on the full accrual basis and include
depreciation expense of the capital asseis used by each activity. The Library’s expenses amounted to
$1.18 million. Village expenses, excluding the Library, totaled to $20.0 millien. an increase of $3.0 million
over the prior fiscal year. The reason for this spike is, like the unusual amounts shown in revenues, due to
the changes in the Tax Increment Financed (TIF) Area. The transfer of the $4.1 million in surplus TIF
revenues 1o the County is accounted for as a general government expense. See the following chan for
comparative values of fiscal vears 2000 and 2010. Except for this unusual expense, the Village's expenses
per activity have remained relatively consistent over the last four years.

Schedule of Village Governmental Activities
For Four Fiscal Years Ending April 30, 2007, 2008, 20009 and 2010

59000 DO0
000 o
&7, 000 Do
85, 00 Do
5000 000
B, D00 Do)
3000 000
2,000,000
51,000,000

®

Gereral Pubc saf ety Highw ays & Santaon e mat
Saresis

Willmge Governmentsl Acthities

-

(Sec independent auditor’s report)
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Capital Assets - Village-wide

The following schedule provides the Village's capital asset balances as of the end of fiscal years 2010, 2009
and 2005, five vears carlier. It shows that the Village has invested in its capital assets not only in fiscal year
2010, but has done so over a five year period. Owerall, the value of Village capital assets, net of
depreciation, increased by 2.2% in fiscal vear 2010, and has increased by 11.6% over a five year period.
The Village is land-bound and has not increased in area,

Capital assets used for governmental purposes increased 1.7% in fiscal year 2010, and 12.9% over five years
primarily due to improvements to Village infrastructure. The Village has reduced its fleet of vehicles over
the last five vears,

Capital assets used for water and sewer services, the Village's business-type activity, increased 3.8% in fiscal
year 2010 due to improvements to the water distribution system and the acquisition of replacement vehicles

and cquipment.

Comparative Schedule of Capital Assets — Village-wide
April 30, 2010, April 30, 2009 and April 30, 2005

Prior Fiscal Vear Five Vears Earlier
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Copital gesets not depreciated:
Land 5 SRS 584,445 g SR M5 =1, 1%
Land 1n the right of way 1526451 3 H26,451 LLE | JR26.453 (11
Construction in pricess e
Copitnl assets net of depreciation:
Buildings 3305901 3,550,964 =1.4% 3631604 9,15
Vehicles & equipment 1012953 GEE.6AE 2.5% 1,181,569 =14.3%
Infrastructisre &, 108 568 81127590 0.1% 5,955,051 36,2%
__ Total governmental capital assets 17.145.355 16,863,300 1.7% 15,179,622 12.9%
BUSIMESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Capital asse1s not deprociated:
Land SO S 0.0% S0y L0,
Constrsction in process 324,138
Capital assets net of depreciation:
Buildings 214,05 213,562 =4, 3% 261623 -18.2%
Wehickes & equipmen 653,031 330.297 971. ™% 2600017 151.1%
Water distribution sysiem 1,285,823 1,023,536 25 4% 1.0R4.437 [8.4%
Sewer gyslem 1,780,157 LEIRRL = | 6% 1932973 TR
Curbs and gulters 1,816,508 1.824.966 3% 1.7849.252 1.5%
Total business-type capital gsscls 5. 751,078 5,537,910 8% 5318802 T
—__Total capital assets, Village-wide S 22.896430  22.401.210 2.2% 11.6%

More detailed information on the current fiscal year changes in the Village's capital assets, and the Library's
capital assets (which are not included here), is provided in the Notes to the Financial Statements, Note §

starting on page 40,

(See independent auditor’s report)
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Government-wide Financial Analvsis {Continued)
Major capital asset transactions during fiscal year 2010

A license reader camern was purchased for the police, in the amount of %27 460,

Village Hall improvements, in the amount of $128.675.

An infrared heating system was installed at the Fire Station for $40.638.

Five police vehicles were purchased, in the amount of $142,637.

A security surveillance system was installed, in the amount of $182,360,

Construction of various curbs, gutters and sidewalks were provided, at the cost of $313,427.
Water main improvemenis were made, 5281820,

® % ® ® @ & =

Noncurrent Debt — Village-wide

The table below provides a comparison of governmental and business-type noncurrent debt for fiscal vears
2009 and 2010. The Village reduced its general obligation (G.0.) debt by $3.14 million in fiscal year 2010
by paying off all principal and interest due for TIF Area bonds. The other three types of noncurrent debt
{defined below) increased by about $274,000. Village-wide, total long-term debt obligations were reduced
by $2.86 million.

Governmental and Business-Tvpe Activity Noncurrent Debt

April 30, 2010 and 2009
_‘-mM' — %
Moncurrent Debt FY Xaio FY 29 FY 1010 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2009
GOk bonds § 1255000 4,393, D0 1,355,000 1,355, 00 2,610,000 5,750,000
Compensated absences payable 502,632 525,328 21,187 23476 H131.819 L4880
Post-emplovment benefit
abligation 372065 192674 372069 192,674
Net pension obligation 52,068 22476 51,068 2147h
Total rm idebit 1.769 A 1 187 1378476 3.647.956 6,513,954
Dee within one year 198,53 1275066 156,187 23476 454713 1,298,543
[hee in more than one vear 1.971 233 3200412 1,220, 0 1,355, 0K 3.193.23) 5.215.412
Toand long-term debd ¥ 71,769 135478 1 187 1378476 3,647,936 6,513.9H

The outstanding G.0. debt consists of bonds issued for street improvements ($900.000) and for
improvements to the Library (5355.000). The Village is responsible for levying taxes to pay for the
Library's G.O. debt. As an Hlinois non home-rule community, the Village is subject to debt limitation. The
Village's last credit rating by Moody's Investors Services, Inc. was rated at Aa3.

Compensated Absences Payable is the amount of accrued vacation and sick leave time that is payable to
employees at the end of the fiscal year. The Village Policies limit the amount of leave that can be carried
over from year to year and employees are encouraged to use all of their vacation leave.

Chher Post-Emplovment Benefit Obligation is the amount of actuarially calculated contributions that the
Village did not make to fund the retiree health insurance benefits that the Village currently provides. This is
a single employer defined-benefit plan (Plan) and it is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. Funding is reported
in the Village's General Fund.

(See independent auditor’s report)
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Government-wide Financial Analvsis — Noncurrent Debt - Village-wide (Continued)

Net Pension Obigation is basically the cumulative difference between the actuarially determined
contributions to the Village pensions and the actual contributions made. The net pension obligation pertains
only to the Fire and Police Pension Funds because the Village has annually met the actual funding
requirements for the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund.

Note 6 of the Neves fo the Financial Statements, on page 43, provides more detailed information on the
Village's and the Library’s noncurrent obligations.

Economic Factors — Village-wide

The Village is weathering a world-wide recession fairly well. The recession has brought on challenges such
as delinquent water bill receipts, some housing vacancies, and the loss of some businesses. However, the
Village has gained new businesses and the neighborhoods have remained attractive and vibrant. The Village
has made economic development a priority. The Village has taken actions to curtail expenses and has
continued to carefully evaluate its financial course and oplions,

Property taxes provide stable revenue. Pledging property taxes as funding for the TIF Area redevelopment
stopped in December 2009. The incremental increase in property taxes will become available for all taxing
entities, including the Village. to fund other purposes in the calendar year 200 1.

The Village receives revenue from a variety of sources other than property taxes. Sales tax, for example, is
generated by several small retailers, particularly those in the River Forest Town Center. Since the 1980s, this
Center has been the Village's retail anchor. The TIF redevelopment provides enhancements to the Village's
retail base.

The sales tax portion of the taxes pledged to fund the TIF Area redevelopment was scheduled 1o continue
until December 15, 2013, However, the Village discontinued it as of December 2009, Since January 2010,
the Village has been able to channel the previously pledged sales taxes to Village operations,

The Village issued 254 business licenses in fiscal year 2009 and the number of businesses increased to 296 in
fiscal vear 2010,

The Village iz in the process of completing a purchase of properties for future development within the TIF
district. In addition, infrastructural improvements will continue into fiscal year 2011, including municipal
building renovations, repaving of streets, and park improvements.

The 2000 census found that $122,155 was the median income of families living in the Village. In addition,

73.6% of residential properties had a value of 5300000 or more at that time, Despite the recession, the
Village continues to be one of the affluent communities in the Chicago-land area.

{See independent auditor’s report)
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Financial Analvsis of Village's Funds

Governmental Funds

Governmental fund reporting provides information on the use of available financial resources within the
fiscal vear. In a nutshell, it tells the taxpayer what the Village did with their taxes within the year. To
provide this information, the modified accrual basis of accounting is used. This accounting method does not
include non-financial type transactions such as depreciation. The reason for this modification of accrual
accounting is, for example, that depreciation is useful 1o see if total expenses match revenues, but it distorts
the calculation of how much financial resources were used within a period.

Fund balance is one way of assessing a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal vear. The Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds, on page 20, shows a combined fund balance, for all
Village govemnmental funds, in the amount of $13.7 million. The Statement af Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds, on page 22, shows that the combined fund balance
declined by almost $1.0 million. This is to be expected as the two TIF Area funds are dissolved, As
mentioned earlier, the TIF Area will be discontinued in FY 2011 and all of the surplus assets will be retumed
to the County for redistribution to all taxing entities, including the Village. About §4.1 million in surplus tax
increment revenues was returned to the County and, combined, the TIF fund balances ($5.6 million and $0.9
million) declined by $3.5 million in fiscal year 2010,

The General Fund is one of the Village's three major governmental funds and it is used to account for the
provision of the following services: police, fire, ambulance, highway and streets, sanitation, building and
planning, and general government. The General Fund balance increased by 52.4 million in fiscal year 2010,
This unusual increase was due 1o the receipt of the early distribution of TIF Area surplus, and the
discontinuation of pledging sales 1axes to the TIF Area, Going forward, the additional property and sales
taxes will benefit the General Fund.

Gremeral Fund budgetary highlights include revenues at 116% of the budget while expenditures were held to
less than 98% of the budgel. Since the Village chose to discontinue the commitment of sales taxes to the TIF
Redevelopment Area and also to disburse some surplus TIF revenues, the General Fund revenues increased
over budget as follows:

TIF Fund revenues redistributed to the General Fund:

Sales tax revenues £ 0.87 million
Property laxes for corporale purposes .22 million
Property taxes for public safety pensions 0,08 million

Total TIF revenues redistributed § 117 million

In addition to this redistribution, the previously pledged sales taxes were recognized as revenue in the
General Fund after January 2000,

(See independent auditor’s report)
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Financial Analvsis of Village's Funds (Continued)
Governmental Funds (Continued)

The following table shows that intergovernmental revenues, which include sales taxes, were 28% higher than
budgeted. and other revenues, which include the surplus distribution, were over 300% higher,

General Fund
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget to Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2010

Variance
Original Final Actual to Percent
Budget Budget Actusl Final Badget  Variance
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES
Local taxes 5 5BOLIM 5800104 5927971 126,867 3.3%
Imergovernmaental 2, 731846 2732 46 1,569,765 R3A910 28.6%
Licenses, permits & charges for
SErVECES 2,300,736 2,309,736 2,115,880 (B3.847) -3.6%
kher revenues 3R2.4492 382452 1,066,138 683,646 304.6%%
(Hher financing sources 532,390 532350 195,924 G6d, 534 =3, 5%
Total revenues and other sources 11,758 368 11,758 568 13,985,687 2.221.119 16.0%
EXPENDITURES ANDM OTHER
FINAMCIMNG USES
(ieneral govermment I,BT5.872 LAT5.872 1,717,303 (158, 569) -5.5%
Public zafety T.044.123 7,123,506 7425037 301,531 4.1%
Public works 2661307 2661307 2,269,272 [192.035) -14. 7%
Transfer out to Equipment
Rﬂmmn J'_I.ﬂ 165,125 15,125 163,123 0,0
Total expenditures and other financing
_uises 11,750,427 11825810 11576737 {249.073) =L1%
Change in fund balance $ 814  (67.242) 2408950 2476192

The Pledged Taxes Fund is a major governmental fund in FY 2010 but it will be discontinued in FY 2011
because it is one of the TIF Area funds. It was used to account for the specific taxes pledged to the payment
of General Obligation Bonds associated with the TIF Area development, Incremental property taxes on the
property in the TIF Ared, certain sales taxes. and the State’s shared sales taxes from the TIF Area were
tracked in this fund.

In late 2009, the Village Board decided 1o discontinue the use of the State’s shared sales taxes in anticipation
of the closing of the TIF Area in fiscal vear 2011. This action, combined with the satisfaction of all bonded
debi, released the Village's obligation o pledge its own sales taxes to the TIF Area. Originally, the Village's
fiscal year 2010 budget included £1.1 million in Village sales taxes plus almost $0.5 million in State shared
sales taxes as revenue for this fund. The total sales taxes received by the Pledged Taxes Fund in FY 2010,
£127.030, represent the final sales tax collections for this fund,

The TIF Area bonded debt was completely satisfied in fiscal vear 2010. As planned in the budget, over

£3.0 million of the financial resources in this fund were used to pay for all owstanding principal and interest
duee,

(Sec independent auditor's report)
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Financial Analysis of Village's Funds (Continued)
Governmental Funds {Continued)

There was an excess of revenues over expenditures in the amount of $2.8 million, before TIF surplus
distribution and transfers to the TIF Development Fund, The net change in fund balance was a decline of
£3.9 million. All remaining resources will be used on projects or retuned to the County next year.

The TIF Economic Development Fund is also a major fund in Fiscal year 2010 but will, like the Pledged
Tax Fund, be discontinued in fiscal year 2011. It was used primarily to account for the use of bond proceeds
issued 1o finance the TIF Area redevelopment. Some grant funded projects within the TIF Area were also
tracked. Owver $2.4 million was used on TIF Area improvements. Funding to complete various TIF Area
projects will be provided by the fund balances in this fund and in the Pledged Tax Fund and is more than
sufficient. All TIF Arca projects will be finalized and both TIF funds will be dissolved in fiscal vear 2011.

; mental fiunds include a debt service fund, a special revenue fund (Motor Fuel
Tax Fund), and the i-:rp!ru-l' J‘qufpnﬂrr Replacement Fund, They have an aggregate fund balance increase of
less than $50.000, as seen on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Fungs, on page 22. The changes in each individual fund balance can be reviewed in the
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Chariges in Fund Balances — Nonmajor Govermmental
Funds, page 67. The debt service fund shows a decrease in fund balance of $209.642. This is due to the use
of the series 20084 G.0O. bond proceeds, held in the Aliernate Revenue Debt Service Fumd, for street
improvements. The bond proceeds are transferred to the General Fund to reimburse eligible street
improvement program expenditures.

Proprietary Fund

The Waterworks and Sewerage Fund,
The Village had anticipated reducing net assets by about $135,300 in fiscal year 2010, but net assets were

reduced by about $80,000 more than anticipated. Revenues fell 15% due to consumer conservation efforts
and a wetter, cooler summer season. The 12% drop in expenses was less than the drop in revenues due to on-
going maintenance and staffing expenses.

Waterworks and Sewerage Fund
Schedule of Budget to Actual Changes in Nel Asscis
For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2010

Original :
and Final Amount Percent
Bud it Virisiase bl
Operations:
Hevenues § 2609852 2216712 (393, 1400 -15. 1%,
Expenses 2. 720,384 1,383,318 (337,054 -12 4%
___Operating loss (110.532) (166.626) A56.004) S0.7%
Mon-operating transactions:
Investmenl moome 20,00 174461 {2.53%) =13
Inerest expense (44.75T) (44.757) 0%
Loss on disposal of capital aszels {21 456} {20, 44 0,0%%
— Net non-operating expenses ey s B s I 2
[ Change in net assets 3 (135280 215.41%) {80,129) B

(Sce independent auditor’s report)
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Financial Analysis of Village's Funds (Continued)

Proprietary Fund (Continued)

The net assets invested in capital assets in the Warterwarks and Sewerage Fund increased from $4,182.910 in
fiscal year 2009 to $4,781,583. Unrestricted net assets were reduced from $1.805,129 in fiscal year 2009 to
£991,038, which is 58% of the operating expenses in fiscal vear 2010,

Contacting the Village’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors, and creditors with a general
overview of the Village's finances and 1o demonstrate the Village's accountability for the money it receives.
Questions concerning this report or requests for additional information should be directed to the Treasurer,
who can be reached at treasureri river-forest.us, or at the Village's address:

Village of River Forest

404 Park Avenue
River Forest, lllinois 60303

{See independent auditor’s report)
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Statement of Net Assets

April 30, 2010

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Taxes
Accounts
Other
Prepaid Expenses
Deposit - Public Entity Risk Poo}
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated
Depreciation

Total Asscts

Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Payroll

Accrued Interest

Deposits Payable

Uneamed Revenue

Due to Pension Trust Funds

Other Payables

Noncurrent Liabilities
Duc Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year

Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Investment in Capital Assets, Net of
Related Debt
Restricted for Enabling Legislation
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.

Component
Primary Government Unit
Governmental Business-Type Public
Activities Activities Total Library
5 4,281,294 484,633 4,765,927 792,631
7,813,703 550,386 8,364,089 717,200
2,815,186 2,815,186 484,044
1,155,992 529,293 1,685,285
381,777 381,777 15,001
437,009 20,133 457,142
693,356 693,356
4,719,933 5300 4,720,433 129,895
12,425,422 5,750,575 18,175,997 2,712,284
34,723,672 7,335,520 42,059,192 4,851,055
697,386 83,017 780,403 28,824
4,456
16,994 16,994
103,012 103,012
2,304,483 683 2,805,166 488,119
1,833 1,835
36,100 36,100
298,536 156,187 454,723 6,251
1,973,234 1,220,600 3,193,234
5,828,568 1,562,899 7,391,467 527,650
16,505,843 4,781,583 21,287,426 2,842,179
7,404,892 7,404,892
4,984,369 691,038 5,875,407 1,481,226
$ 28895104 5,772,621 34,667,725 4,323,405
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINGIS
Statement of Activities

Year Ended April 30, 2010

Program Revenues

Charges for Operating
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Grants
Governmental Activities
General Government $ 7,174,166 1,177,211 50,584
Public Safety 7,667,352 451,285
Highways and Streets 1,716,012 315,452
Sanitation 826,640 853,344
Interest 122,883
Total Govemnmental Activities 17,507,053 2,481,840 366,036
Business-Type Activitics
Waterworks and Sewerage 2,449,551 2,216,712
Total Primary Government $ 19956644 4,698,552 366,036
Component Unit
Public Library § 1,185,688 20,520 16,422

See accompanying Wotes to the Financial Statements.

General Revenues
Property Taxes
Sales Taxcs
Income Taxes
Utility Taxes
Transfer Taxes
intergovernmental Taxes
Miscellaneous Income
Investment Income

Total General Revenues
Change in Net Assets
Net Asscts - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending



Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Component
Primary Government Unit
Governmental Business-Type Public
Activities Activities Total Library
(5,946,371} (3,946,371)
(7,216,067} (7.216,067)
(1,400,560} (1,400,560}
26,704 26,704
{122,883) (122,883)
(14,659,177} - (14,659,177} -
(232,879 {232,879)
(14,659,177} (232,879} (14,892,056) -
(1,148,746)
11,076,944 11,076,944 1,079,207
1,707,772 1,707,772
897,371 897,371
621,328 621,328
69,967 69,967
1,378,356 1,378,356
458,896 458,896 27,537
631,248 17,461 648,709 7,662
16,841,882 17.461 16,859,343 1,114,406
2,182,705 (215.418) 1,967,287 {34,340}
26,712,399 5.988,039 32,700.438 4,357,745
28,895,104 5,772,621 34,667,725 4,323,405




VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

April 30, 2010

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalcnis
Investments
Receivables
Taxes
Accounts
Refuse
Other
Prepaid Items
Due from Other Funds
Deposit - Public Entity Risk Pool

Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Deferred Revenue
Due to Other Funds
Due to Fiduciary Fund
Other Payables

Total Liabilities

Fund Baiances

Reserved for Prepaid Items
Reserved for Working Cash
Reserved for TIF Activity
Reserved for Builders Escrows
Reserved for IRMA Deposits
Unreserved - Designated for Parking
Unreserved - Designated for Band Sheil
Unreserved

General Fund

Special Revenue Fund

Debt Service Fund

Capital Projects Fund

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.

TIF

Pledged Economic Nonmajor Total
Taxes Development  Governmental Governmental

General Fund Fund Funds Funds
S 434 469 2,202,347 1,005,130 639,348 4,281,254
2,519,980 3,436,937 83,093 1,773,693 1.813.703
2,681,185 134,601 2,815,186
1,155,992 1,155,992
234,833 234,833
4,346 3,222 139,376 146,944
123,599 5,032 128,631
7.426 17,173 24,599
693.356 693,356
$ 7,835,186 5,659,679 1,232,631 2.547.042 17,294,538
$ 427511 237.476 31,999 697,386
2,696,852 147,631 2,804,483
17.173 7,426 24599
1,835 1,835
36.100 36.100
3.179.871 - 244 902 139.630 3.564.403
123,599 5,032 128.631
535,032 535,032
5,639,679 5.639.679
20,544 20,544
693,356 693,356
363,695 363.693
36.237 36.237
2,902,852 2,502,852
670,455 670,455
338,894 338,804
982,697 1,398.063 2,380,760
4.675.315 5.639.67% 987,726 2407412 13,730,135
§ 7855186 3.636.679 1,232,631 2,547,042 17.254.538




VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Assets

April 30, 2010

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 13,730,135

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 17,145,355

Some Village expenses are paid before the services have occurred;
therefore, these expenses are reporied as prepaid expenses in Statement
of Net Assets. 308,378

The Net Pension Obligations for Police and Fire Pension funding are not reported
in the governmental funds. {52,068}

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
These activities consist of:

General Obligation Bonds Payable {1,255,000)
Accrued Interest {16,994)
Post-Employment Benefit Payable {372,069)
Accrued Compensated Absences Payable {592,633)
(2.236,696)
Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 28,895,104

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOQIS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Year Ended April 30. 2010

Revenues
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Licenses and Permits
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
Investment Income
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Current
General Government
Public Safety
Highways and Streets
Sanitation

Debt Service
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Capital Qutlay

Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures

QOther Financing Sources (Uscs)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Sale of Capital Assets
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses}

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances
Beginning

Ending

TIF
Pledged Economic Nonmajor Total
Taxes Development  Governmental Governmental
General Fund Fund Funds Funds

$ 5927571 5,583,789 256,479 11,768,239
3,369,763 127,030 337,288 315,452 4,349,535
817,869 817,869
1,408,020 1,408,020
255,551 255,951
12,546 208,240 4.431 59,061 284,278
797.641 338 798,479
12,789,763 5,919,059 341,719 631,830 19,682,371
1,717,303 3.266,047 2,051,282 7.034,632
7,425,037 7.425,037
1,442,632 19,356 1,461,988
826,640 826,640
2,963,000 175,000 3,140,000

129,023 44,751 173,774

425912 235,764 661.676

11,411,612 6,360,070 2,477,164 474, 871 20,723,747
1.378.151 (441.011) {2.135.475) 156,959 {1.041.376)
1,188,537 2,700,600 165,125 4.033,662
{1653,125) (3,547,362) (68,240} {272,933) (4.053,662)
7.387 7.387
1,030,799 (3.547,362} 2,631,760 {107.81) 7.387
2,408,950 (3,988,373) 496,285 49,149 {1,033,989)
2,266.363 9.648,052 491,444 2,358,263 14,764.124
$ 4.673315 3,659,679 987,729 2407412 13,730.133

Sce accompanying Noles to the Financial Staterents.



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to Statement of Activities

Year Ended April 30, 2010

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ (1,033,989)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
arc different because:

Governmental funds report capital ontlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expensc. This is the
amount by which capital outlays cxceeded depreciation in the current period.
Thesc activities consist of

Capital Outlay 777,242
Depreciation Expense {434,517)
Disposal of Capital Assets (60,670)
282,055
Certain expenditures are recognized at the time of purchase rather than
based on consumplions; therefore, related prepaid expenses are
not reported in the funds. 20,040
The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
These activities consist of:
Principal Repayments on General Obligation Bonds 3,140,000
Change in Net Pension Obligations {25,592}
Changc in Post-Employment Benefits Payable {179,395}
Change in Compensated Absences Payable {67,305)
2,863,708
Interest on long-term debt is shown as a fund expenditure when paid,
but is accrued in the Statement of Activities. 50,891
Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities S 2182705

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.

I
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Waterworks and Sewerage Fund

Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Fund

April 30,2010
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 484,633
Investments 550,386
Accounts Receivable 526,293
Prepaid ftems 20,133
Total Current Assets 1,584,445

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets, Net of

Accumulated Depreciation 5,751,075
Total Assets 7,335,520
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 83,017
Deposits Payable 163,012
Deferred Revenue 683
Compensated Absences 21,187
General Obtigation Bonds Payable - Current 135,000
342,899
Noncurrent Liabilities
General Obligation Bonds Payable 1,223,000
Total Liabilities 1,562,899
Net Assets
Investment in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 4,781,583
Unrestricted Net Assets 991,038
Total Net Assets S 5,772,621

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Waterworks and Sewerage Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
et Assets - Proprietary Fund

Year Ended April 30, 2010

Operating Revenues
Charges for Services
Water Sales
Sewer Charges
Sales of Meters
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses, Excluding Depreciation
Personal Services
Contractual Services
Commodities
Total Operating Expenses, Excluding Depreciation
Operating Loss Before Depreciation
Depreciation
Operating Loss
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Income
Interest Expense
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets
Total Nonoperating Revenues {Expenses)

Change in Net Assets

et Assets
Beginning

Ending

Sce accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.

1.3
Lh

$ 1,983,419
228,151
5,142
2,216,712

697,068
566,690
967,985

2,231,743
(15,031)
151,595

(166,626}

17,461
(44,7757)

£21,496)
{48,792)

(215,418)

5,988,039



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Waterworks and Sewerage Fund
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprictary Fund

Year Ended April 30, 2010

Cash Flows from Operating Activilies
Receipts from Customers
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Interest Paid
Purchases of Capital Assets

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from Sale of Investments
Interest

Nel Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning of Year

End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Used in Operating Activities
Operating Loss
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash
Used in Operating Activities
Depreciation
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Increase in Accounts Receivable
Decrease in Prepaid Items
Decrease in Accounts Payable
Increase in Deposits Payable
Increase in Deferred Revenue
Decrease in Compensated Absences Payable

See accompanying Notes 1o the Financial Statements,

$ 2,158.369
(1,602,109)

{699,357
{143,097)

{44,757)

(386,256)
(431.013)

590,577
17,461

608,038

33,928

450,705

$  (166,626)

151,595

(60,501)
20,230
(87,664)
1,475

683

{2.289)

$  {143.097)



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Statement of Net Assets - Pension Trust Funds

April 30, 2010
Police Firefighters'
Pension Pension Total
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents % 422 778 724,471 1,147,249
Investments
Certificates of Deposit 990,986 444,863 1,435,854
U.S. Government Obligations 7,700,721 6,198,416 13,899,137
Mutual Funds 7,221,979 4,276,715 11,498,694
Insurance Company Contracts 856,309 034,656 1,790,965
Accrued Interest 72,840 4,421 77,261
Due From Municipality 1,835 1,835
Prepaid Expense 2,375 2,375
Total Assets 17,269,823 12,583,547 29,853,370
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 2.519 24 2,543
Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits $ 17.267.304 12,583,523 29,850,827

See accommpanying Notes to the Financial Statements.




VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Statement of Changes in Net Assets - Pension Trust Funds

Year Ended April 30, 2010

Additions
Contributions
Participant Contributions
Employer Contributions

investment Income
Net Appreciation in Fair Value
of Investments
interest and Dividends
Totai Additions
Deductions
Benefits
Refunds of Contributions
Administrative Expense
Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits
Beginning

Ending

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.
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Police Firefighters'

Pension Pension Total
$ 217,320 165,352 382,672
1,048,020 662,303 1,711,323
1,266,340 827,655 2,093,995
2,114,576 1,462,955 3,577,531
393,864 227,592 621,456
2,508,440 1,690,547 4,198,987
3,774,780 2,518,202 6,292,982
1,438,598 1,024 849 2,463,447
51,241 17,919 69,160
50,350 58,314 108,664
1,540,189 1,101,082 2,641,271
2,234,591 1,417,120 3,651,711
15,032,713 11,166,403 26,199,116
§ 17,267,304 12,583,523 29,850,827




VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Index to Notes to the Financial Staternents
April 30,2010
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2010

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Village of River Forest (the Village), as reflected in the accompanying tinancial
statements for the year ended April 30, 2010, conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAI') as applicable to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies:

A

Financial Reporting Entity

As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the Village and its component unit.
Component units are entities for which the Village is considered to be financially accountable.
“Blended” component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the Village’s
operations. Therefore, data from these units are combined with data of the primary government. On the
other hand, “discretely presented” component units are reported in a separate column in the combined
financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the Village.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

The River Forest Public Library has a separately elected, seven-member board which annually
determines its budget and resulting tax Jevy. Upon approval of the Village, the levy is submitted to the
County. All debt of the Library is secured by the full faith and credit of the Village, which is wholly
liable for the debt. The Library, while servicing the general population of the Village, does not provide
services entirely to the Village. Because the Library is fiscally dependent on the primary government,
the Library is being reported as a discrete presentation.  Financial statements for the Library are
presented in the component unit portion of this report.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets and Staternent of Activities)
report information on ail of the nonfiduciary activities of the Village. For the most part, the effect of
interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normaily are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are these that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment.

Program revenues include 1} charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function
or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported, instead,
as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprictary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. Individual nonmajor funds are reported in the supplementary information.

29



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30,2010

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Cont.)

C.

Fund Accounting

The Viilage uses funds te report on its financial position and the results of its operations, Fund
accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating
transactions related to certain government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity
with a self-baiancing set of accounts.

Funds are classified into three broad categories: govemnmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Each
category, in turm, is divided into separate “fund types.”

The Village has the following fund types:

Governmental Funds are used to account for the Village’s general governmental activities. There are
four of these types and they use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting.

The General Fund is the Village’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Furds account for the collection and disbursement of earmarked monies.

Debt Service Funds account for the servicing of general long-term debt not financed by proprietary
funds.

Capital Projects Funds account for the acquisition of capital assets or construction of major capital
projects not financed by proprietary funds.

Proprictary Funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where
the determination of nct income is necessary or useful for sound financial administration. Goods or
services from such activities are provided to outside parties by the enterprise fund.

The Enterprise Fund (Waterworks and Sewerage Fund) is used to account for those operations that
are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business or where the Village Board has
decided that the determination of revenues earned, costs incurred, and/or net income is necessary for
management accountability,

Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf
of others. Trust funds account for assets held by the government under the terms of a formal trust
agreement.

Pension Trust Funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as the proprietary fund, using
the same measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The pension trust funds account
for the assets and activity of the Village’s Police Pension Trust Fund and Firetighters’ Pension Trust
Fund.



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30,2010

1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

D.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardiess of when
the related cash flow takes place. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon encugh thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
Village considers property taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. A 90 day availability period is used for revenue recognition for all other governmental
fund revenues. Expenditures gencrally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences, and claims and judgments are recorded when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales taxes, income taxes, motor fuel taxes, interest revenue, and charges for services
revenues associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so
have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue iiems are considered to
be nicasureable and available only when cash is received by the Village.

The Village reports the following major governmentai funds:

The General Fund is the Village’s primary operating fund. It accounts for ail financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Pledged Taxes Fund is a debt service fund which accounts for the accumulation of resources for
the payment of the General Obligation Bonds Series 1999 and 2003 A.

The TIF Economic Development Fund is a capital projects fund which accounts for the incremental
revenues reccived under the Municipal Retailers Occupation Tax, the Municipal Service Occupation
Tax Act, real property taxes, and the related capital improvenients.

The Village reports the following major and only enterprise fund:

The Waterworks and Sewerage Fund accounts for the provision of water services, sewer repair, and
improvement services to the residents of the Village of River Forest. All activities necessary to
provide such services are accounted for in this fund including, but not limited to, administration,
operations, maintenance, financing and related debt service, and billing and collection.



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Notes tor the Financial Statements
April 30,2010

1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Cont.)

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Cont.)

Additionally, the Village reports the following fiduciary funds:

The Police FPension Trust Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources to pay pension costs.
Resources are contributed by police force members at rates fixed by state statutes and by the Village
through an annual property tax levy.

The Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources to pay pension
costs. Resources are contributed by fire personnel members at rates fixed by state statutes and by the
Village through an annual property tax levy.

The Village’s enterprise fund applies all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as relevant Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless
those pronouncements conflict or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case GASB prevails,

Amounts reported as program revenues include charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided and operating grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported
as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes,

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenscs from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
cohnection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the enterprise
fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

The Viilage reports unearned revenue on its financial statements. Uneamed revenue arises when a
potential revenue does not meet both the “measurable” and “available™ criteria for recogaition in the
current period. Uneamed revenue also arises when resources are received by the Village before it has a
legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying
expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the Village
has a legal claim to resources, the liability for uncarmed revenue is removed from the combined balance
sheet and revenue is recognized.

Budgets

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP. Annual appropriated budgets are adepted (at the
fund level) for the general, special revenue, debt service, capital projects, enterprise, and pension trust
funds. The annual appropriated budget is legally enacted and provides for a legal level of control at the
fund level. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months
or less at the date purchase are considered cash equivalents.

L
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30,2010

L.

Sumimary of Significant Accounting Policies {Cont.)

G.

Investments

Investments with a maturity of one year or less are stated at cost plus or minus amortized discount or
premiwm {which approximates market). Investments with a maturity greater than one year are stated at
fair value,

Receivables
The recognition of receivables associated with nonexchange transactions is as follows:

- Derived tax receivable (such as sales, income, and motor fuel taxes) are recognized when the
underlying exchange has occurred.

- Imposed nonexchange receivables (such as property taxes and fines) are recognized when an
enforceable legal claim has arisen.

- Government mandates or voluntary nonexchange transaction receivable {such as mandates or
grants) are recognized when zal! legal requirements have been met.

Prepaid ltems/Expenses

Prepaid items/expenses represent payments made to vendors during the fiscal year for services that will
benefit future periods.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, sidewalks,
bridges and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined as having a useful life
greater than one year with an injtial, individual cost of more than $10,000 for vehicles and equipment,
$50,000 for buildings, and $100,000 for infrastructure. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated
fair market value at the date of the donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets” lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as
projects are constructed.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated vseful lives:

Buildings 50 years
Vehicles and Equipment 2-21 vears
Water Distribution Svstem 75 years
Sewer System 100 years
Curbs and Gutters 60 years
Infrastructure 25 - 90 years

et
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30,2010

1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

K.

Compensated Absences

Vested or accumulated vacation leave is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements, as the Village expects employees to use their vacation within one fiscal year;
however, they may carty over ten days. Vested or accumulated vacation leave of proprietary funds and
govermment-wide statements is recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the benefits accrue
to employees. Vacation leave is only recorded in the governmental fund financial statements when an
employee leaves before vear end and has not been paid out. No liability is recorded for nonvesting,
accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits. However, a liability is recognized fer that portion of
accumulating sick leave benefits that is estimated will be taken as “terminal leave” prior to retirement.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obiigations are reported as liabilities, Bond premiuins and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premiurn or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term
of the related debt, if material.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the carrent period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources,
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses, whether or not withheld from the
actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that
are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by cutside parties for use for a specific
purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

Interfund Transactions

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses. Transactions that
constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly
applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund, and as
reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

Use of Estimates

In preparing financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assuraptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and Habilities at the date
of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30, 2010

2. Fund Equity
There were no funds that had a deficit in fund balance as of April 30, 2010.

3. Deposits and Investments

The Village’s investment policy is to establish cash management and investment guidelines for the Village
officials responsible for the stewardship of public funds. The Village has established specific objectives to
meet these guidelines. The Village's investment policy is more restrictive than [llinois State Statutes. The
Village is authorized to make deposits in any credit union or bank, as defined by the Illinois Banking Act, and
meke investments in obligations guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America, similar
obligations of agencies of the United States of America, certain money market mutual funds, and The lilincis
Funds,

The deposits and investments of the Pension Funds are held separately from those of other Village funds.
Statutes authorize the Pension Funds to make deposits/invest in interest-bearing divect obligations of the
United States of America; obligations that are fully guaranteed or insured as to the payment of principal and
interest by the United States of America; bonds, notes, debentures, or similar obligations of agencies of the
United States of America; savings accounts or certificates of deposit issued by banks or savings and loan
associations chartered by the United States of America or by the State of lilinois, to the extent that the deposits
are insured by the agencies or instrumentalities of the federal government; credit unions, to the extent that the
deposits are insured by the agencies or instrumentalities of the federal government; State of lilinois bonds;
pooled accounts managed by the lilincis Public Treasurer’s Investment Pool, or by banks, their subsidiaries or
holding companies, in accordance with the taws of the State of Illinois; bonds or tax anticipation warrants of
any county, township, or municipal corporation of the State of Hlinois; direct obligations of the State of Israel;
money market mutual funds managed by investment companies that are registered under the Federal
Investment Company Act of 1940 and the lilinois Securities Law of 1953 and are diversified, open-ended
management investment companies, provided that the portfolio is limited to specified restrictions; general
accounts of life insurance companies and separate accounts of life insurance companies provided that the
investment in separate accounts does not exceed ten percent of the pension fund’s net assets. Pension funds
with net assets of $2.5 million or more may invest up to thirty-five percent of plan net assets in mutual funds
and an additional ten percent in accounts with life insurance companies. In addition, pension funds with net
assets of at least $5 million that have appointed an investment advisor may, through that investment advisor,
invest up to forty-five percent of the plan’s net assets in common and preferred stocks which meet specific
restrictions.

At April 30, 2010, the Village’s cash and investments consisted of the following:

Primary
Government Fiduciary Total
Cash and Investments $ 13,130,016 29,771,899 42,901,915

L%}
A
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3. Deposits and Investments (Cont.)

For disclosure purposes, this amount is segregated into three components: 1) cash on hand; 2) deposits with
financial institutions, which include amounts held in demand accounts and savings accounts; and 3) other
investments which consist of investments in The Illinois Funds, certificates of deposit, U.8. Treasuries,
government-backed securities, and mutual funds as follows:

Cash on Hand b 1,900
Deposits with Financial Institutions
Village 14,472
Police Pension Fund 23,913
Fire Pension Fund 6,168
Other Investinents
Village 13,113,644
Police Pension Fund 17,168,860
Fire Pension Fund 12,572,958
$ 42901915

The Illinois Funds Money Market Fund is an external investment pool developed and implemented in 1975 by
the [linois General Assembly under the jurisdiction of the Treasurer, who has regulatory oversight for the
pool. The Fund is not registered with the SEC and has an affirmed AAAm Standard & Poor’s credit quality
rating. The fair value of the positions of this pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. The yield on the
Mlinois Funds Money Market Fund was .150% at April 30, 2010. The Fund issues a publicly available
financiai report. That report may be obtained by writing 1o the Office of the State Treasurer, [ilinois Funds
Admipisirative Office, 300 W. Jefferson Street, Springfield, 1llinois 62702,

As of April 30, 2010, the Village has the following investments and maturities.

[nvestment Maturities

Fair Less Than lto 5 More Than
Investment Type Value One Year Years 5 Years
The IMHnois Funds S 3,784,409 3,784,409
Money Market/Liquid Assets 2,016,397 2,016,397
Certificates of Deposit 7,016,766 4,554,728 2,462,038
Federal Home Loan Mortgage 28,2%6 28,296
Government National Mortgage
Association 149,350 110,526 38,824
Federal National Mortgage
Association 118,426 118,426
§ 13,113,644 10,355,534 2.572.564 185,546
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-
a.

Deposits and Investments {Cont.)

As of April 30, 2010, the Police Pension Fund has the following investiments and maturities.

Investment Maturities

Fair Less Than 1to05 More Than
Investment Type Value One Year Years 5 Years
The [Hinois Funds 101,610 101,610
Money Market/Liquid Assets 297,255 297,255
Certificates of Deposit 990,986 182,209 808,777
Federal Farm Credit Bank 332,626 110,313 222,313
Federal Home Loan Bank 1,060,742 1,060,742
Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation 1,074,530 527,500 547.030
Federal National Mortgage
Association 861,625 584,437 277,188
Government National Mortgage
Association 1,117,441 1,117,441
LS. Treasuries 3,253,757 1,184,233 2,069,524
8,090,572 2,349,744 2,507,332 4,233,456
Fair
Value
*Mutual Funds 7,221,979

*Insurance Contracts/Annuities

856,309

8,078,288

*Not subject to risk categorization. The mutual funds and insurance confracts/annuities are managed by the

financial institution in which they are held.
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3. Deposits and Investments (Cont.)

As of April 30, 2010, the Firefighters” Pension Fund has the following investments and maturities.

Tnvestment Maturities

Fair Less Than ltos More Than
Investment Type Vahue Cne Year Years 5 Years
The Illinois Funds S 259243 259,243
Money Market/Liquid Assets 456,060 459 060
Certificates of Deposit 444 868 444 868
Federal Home Loan Bank 614,689 505470 109,219
Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation 873,600 875,600
Freddie Mac 26,487 26,487
Government National Mortgage
Association 170,128 176,128
.8, Treasuries 4,511,512 282,530 2,073,205 2,155,777
$ 7,361,587 1,951,171 3,058,024 2,352,392
Fair
Value
*Mutual Funds $ 4,276,715
*Insurance Contracts/Annuities 934,656

211,371

5 35

*Not subject to risk categorization. The mutual funds and insurance contracts/annuities are managed by the

financial institution in which they are held.

As of April 36, 2010, the Component Unit {Library) has the following investments and maturities.

Investment Maturities

Fair Less Than lto5 More Than
Invesiment Type Value One Year Years 5 Years
The Illinois Funds s 152,592 152,592
Certificates of Deposit 564,608 564,608
$§ 717200 717,200 - -
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-

3. Deposits and Investments (Cont.)
Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect fair values of an investment. In
accordance with its investment policy, the Village’s investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to
enable the Village to meet ail operating requirements that may be reasonably anticipated in any Village fund.
Maturities of investments of all funds, except the Capital Projects Funds and Working Cash Funds, shall
average three vears. Maturities of investments of Capital Projects Funds and Working Cash Funds shall not
exceed ten years.

The Police and Firefighters’ Pension Funds’ investment policies limit their exposure to interest rate risk by
structuring the portfolio to provide iiquidity while at the same time matching investment maturities to
projected fund liabilities.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. State
law limits investments in mutual bond funds to the top two ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical
rating organizations. As of April 30, 2010, The Illinois Funds Money Market was rated AAAm by Standard &

Poor’s.

The Police and Firefighters” Pension Funds limit their exposure to credit risk by primarily investing in
securities issued by the United States Government and/or its agencies that are implicitly guaranteed by the
United States Government. The investments in the securities of U.S. government and agency obligations were
rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s and Aaa by Moody’s Investors Service. The Police and Firefighters’
Pension Funds® investment policies follow the “prudent person” rule, whicl states, “Investments shall be made
with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion, and
intefligence exercise in the management of their own affawrs, not for speculation, but for investment,
considering the primary objective of safety as well as the secondary objective of the attainment of market rates
of return.”

Custodial Credit Risk

In the case of deposits, this is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Village’s and Component Unit’s
deposits may not be returned. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure
of the counterparty, the Village will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. As of April 30, 2010, the Village’s deposits with financial
institutions were not exposed to custodial credit risk because they were insured and collateralized. As of April
30, 2019, $93,468 of the Component Unit’s total deposits with financial institutions of $792,631 was exposed
to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized.

None of the Police and Firefighters® Pension Funds’ deposits with financial institutions were exposed to
custodial credit risk as those deposits were insured, fully collateralized, and held by an independent third party.

Concentration of Credit Risk

it is the policy of the Village to diversify its investment portfolio. Investments shall be diversified to eliminate
the risk of loss resulting in overconceniration in a security, maturity, issuer, or class of securities. The amount
of funds deposited and/or invested in a financial institution shall not exceed 65% of the capital stock and
surplus of such institution unless collateral security has been pledzed, in which case, the amount of such
deposits and/or investments shall not exceed 75%.
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3.

Deposits and Investments {Cont.)
Conceniration of Credit Risk (cont)

It is the policy of the Police and Firefighters’ Pension Funds to diversify their investment porifolios. At
April 30, 2010, the Police Pension Fund’s investments {other than those issued or guaranteed by the U.S.
Government) include a Vanguard 500 Index Fund of $1,340,275, Vanguard Total Stock Market Index Fund of
$1,090,007, Vanguard Healthcare Fund of $921,619, and Ishares 3000 Index Fund of $1,053,955, represent
5% or more of plan net assets. At April 30, 2010, the Firefighters” Pension Fund’s investments (other than
those issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government) include Sun Life Compass Annuity of $934,656, Dodge
and Cox International Fund of $1,112,646, Leuthold Core Fund of $1,123,453, and Vanguard Ilealth Care
Fund of $909,022 represent 3% or more of plan net assets.

Receivables - Taxes

Property taxes for 2009 attach as an enforceable lien on January 1, 2008, Taxes are levied by December 2009
for coliection in the subsequent calendar vear {by passage of a Tax Levy Ordinance). Tax bills are pavable in
two installments on or about March 1 and August 1, 2010. The County collects such taxes and remits them
periodically. As the 2009 levy is intended to finance fiscal 2010-11, the revenue is shown as deferred at
April 3¢, 2010.

Capital Assets
A.  Governmental Activities

A summary of changes in capital assets for governmental activities of the Village is as follows:

Beginning Additions/ Deletions/ Ending
Balance Transfers Transflers Balance
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Land kS 584,445 584,445
Right of Ways 3,826,453 3,826,453
Construction it Process 309,035 309,035
4,410,898 309,035 - 4,719,933
Capital Asscts Being Depreciated
Buildings 4,369,707 40,658 4,410,365
Vehicles and Equipment 2,577,309 170,097 62,868 2,684,538
[nfrastructure 11,850,969 257,452 98,934 12,000,487
18,797,985 468,207 161,802 19,104,390
Less Accumulated Depreciation For
Buildings 1,018,743 87,721 1,106,464
Vchicles and Equipment 1,588,661 145,792 62,868 1,671,585
Infrastructure 3,738,179 201,004 38,264 3,900919
6,345,583 434,517 101,132 6,678,968
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated, Net 12,452,402 33.690 60,670 12,425,422
Governmental Activities Capital
Assets, INet S 16,863,300 342,725 60,670 17.145.355
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5.

Capital Assets {Cont.)

B. Business-Type Activities

A summary of changes in capital assets for business-type activities of the Village is as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Land 5 500 500
Construction in Process 324,138 48,461 372,599
324,638 48,461 372,399 500
Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Buildings 864,917 864,917
Vehicles and Equipment 649,134 372,599 1,021,733
Water Distribution System 1,995,750 281,820 12,078 2,265,492
Sewer System 3,129,868 3,129,868
Curbs and Guiters 2,615,830 55,975 35,824 2,635,981
9,255,499 710,354 47 902 5,917,991
Less Accumulated Depreciation For
Buildings 641,355 9,506 650,861
Vehicles and Equipment 318,337 49,865 368,702
Watcr Distribution System 972,214 18,533 12,078 979,669
Sewer System 1,318,957 29,754 1,348,711
Curbs and Gutiers 790,864 42,937 14,328 819,473
4,642,227 151,595 26,406 4,167 416
Total Capital Asseis Being
Depreciated, Net 5,213,272 558,799 21,496 5,750,575
Business-Type Activities, Capital
Asscts, Net § 5537910 607,260 394,095 5,751,075

C. Depreciation Expense

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
General Government $ 62,269
Public Safety 88,224
Highways and Streets 254 024
Waterworks and Sewerage 151,595
$ 434517 151,595

4]
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5. Capital Assets {Cont.}

D. Commitments

The Village has certain contracts for construction projects which were in progress as of April 30, 2010.

The remaining commitinents are as follows:

Viaduct Project § 246,612
Security Surveillance System 347,133
Village Hall Improvements 63,024

E. Component Unit - Library

A summary of changes in capital assets for the Library is as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Construction in Process 3 71,611 58,284 129,895
Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Buildings 3,325,969 3,325,969
Equipment and Furnishings 92,396 92,396
Circulation Collection 2,739,567 117,851 206,563 2,630,855
6,157,932 117,851 206,563 6,069,220
Less Accumulated Depreciation For
Buildings 1,213,969 64,000 1,277,969
Equipment and Furnishings 60,976 17,800 78,776
Circulation Collection 1,952,167 195,217 147,193 2,600,191
3,227,112 277017 147,193 3,356,936
Tatal Capital Assets Being
Depreciated, Net 2,930,820 (139,166} 59.370 2,712,284
Library Capital Assets, Net 5 3,002,431 (100,882) 58,370 2,842,179
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6. lLong-Term Debt
A. Changes in Long-Term Obligations

The following is a summary of the Village's long-term debt balances and transactions for the year ended

April 30, 2010
Due
Maturity Balance Balance Within
Date May | Additions Reductions April 30 One Year
Governmental Activities
General Obligation Bonds:
Series 1999
3.95% - 4.75% 12/01/11 3 2.090.000 2,090,000
Series 2003A
1.10% - 3.1253% 12/01/13 875,000 875,000
Series 2005 (Library)
3.50% - 4.13% 12/01/17 395.000 40,000 355,000 40,0060
Serics 2008A
2.0% - 3.6% 12/01/13 1,035,000 135,600 900,000 146,000
4,395,000 - 3,140,000 1,255,000 180,000
Compensated Absences 525,328 487 566 420,262 592,632 118.536
Net Pension Obligations 22,476 29,592 52,068
Post-Employvment Benefits 192.674 179,395 372,069
$ 3135478 696,553 3,560,262 2.271.769 298,536
Business-Type Activities
General Obligation Bonds:
Series 20088
2.75% - 4.106% 12/01/18 $ 1,353,000 1,353,000 135,000
Compensated Absences 23,476 21,187 23,476 21,187 21,187
S 1,378,476 21,187 23,476 1.376,187 136187
Component Unit - Public Library
Compensated Absences S 6,420 6.251 6,420 6,251 6,251

Compensated absences and post-employment benefits are paid from the General Fund and charged te General
Government, Public Safety, Highways and Streets, and Sanitation. Changes in Net Pension Obligations are
charged to Public Safety expenditures.
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6. Long-Term Debt (Cont.)

B.

General Obligation Debt

The Village issues general obiigation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of
major capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for general government activities.

The Series 2005 general obligation bonds are recorded as debt for the Village, as the Village is the party
responsible for payments. The proceeds of these bonds have been recorded in the Public Library’s (a2
component unit of the Village) Library Improvement Fund, as the proceeds will be spent to improve the
Public Library.

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:

Year Ending Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
April 30 Principal Iiterest Principal Interest Principal interest

2011 $ 180,000 40,786 135,000 46,568 315,000 87,354
2012 185,000 36,116 135,000 42,855 320,000 78,971
2013 190,000 30,931 140,600 38,805 330,000 69,736
2014 195,000 25,206 145,000 34,605 340,000 59,811
2015 260,060 18,838 150,600 30,255 350,000 46,093
2016-2018 305,000 18,002 650,000 65,420 955,000 83,422
$1,255,000 169,879 1,355,000 258,508 2,610,060 428,387

Legal Debt Margin

Assessed Valuation — 2008 (preliminary)

Legal Debt Limit — 8.625% of Assessed Valuation $ 55,314,961
Amount of Debt Applicable to Debt Limit 1,255,000
Legal Debt Margin S 54059961

Chapter 65, Section 5/8-5-1 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes provides,

“

...ne municipality having a

population of less than 500,000 shall become indebted in any manner or for any purpose, to an amount,
including existing indebtedness in the aggregate exceeding 8.625% on the value of the taxable property
therein, to be ascertained by the last assessinent for state and county purposes, previous to the incurring
of the indcbtedness or, until January I, 1983, if greater, the sum that is produced by multiplying the
mumicipality’s 1978 equalized assessed valuation by the debt limitation percentage in effect on
Janvary 1, 1979.7
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7. Conduit Debt

The Village issued $17,000,000 and $5,580,000 of Industrial Project Revenue Bonds for Dominican
University during the years ended April 30, 2010 and 2003, respectively, and 32,500,000 of Education Facility
Revenue Bonds for Keystone Montessori School during the year ended April 30, 2003. The Village has no
obligation to pay this debf. The 2009 Project Revenue Bonds for Dominican University had an outstanding
balance of $17,000,000 at April 30, 2010, and the 2002 bonds were fully defeased in December 2009. The
Education Facility Revenue Bonds for Keystone Montessori School were fully defeased in March 2010,

8. Interfund Transactions

A, Due to/from Other Funds

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Pledged Taxes Fund General $ 17,173
General TIF Economic Development Fund 7,426
Police Pension Fund General 1,835

5 26,434

Sales taxes of $17,173 collected by the General Fund are duc to the Pledged Taxes Fund. The TIF Fund
owes $7,426 to the General Fund for TIF expenses paid.

B.  Transfers

Receiving Fund

Transferring Fund Amount

General

Capital Projects
Nonmajor Fund

Capital Projects
TIF Economic Development Fund

Debt Service

TIF Economic Development Fund 3 68,240

Pledged Taxes Fund 847,362

Nonmajor Fund 230,535
Capital Projects

Nonmajor Fund 22,400
General

165,125

Debt Service Fund

Pledged Taxes Fund 2,700,000

$ 4,053,662

The Pledged Taxes Fund transferred $847,362 to the General Fund for tax rebates. The Alternate
Revenue Debt Service Fund transferred $250,535 to the General Fund for repavment of street

improvements paid during the year.

The Pledged Taxes Fund transferred $2,700,000 to the TIF

Economic Development Fund for the operations of the TIF District. The TIF Economic Development
Fund transferred $68,240 to the General Fund for the repayment of expenses incurred with the TIF
District projects. The Capital Equipment Replacement Fund transforred  $22,400 for IRMA

reimbursements received.
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9,

Risk Management
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA)

The Village participates in the Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA). IRMA is an
erganization of municipalities and special districts in Northeastern lllinois which have formed an association
under the I[llinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act to pool its risk management needs. The agency
administers a mix of self-insurance and commercial insurance coverage; property/casualty and workers
compensation claim administration/litigation management services; unemployment claim administration;
exiensive risk management/loss control consulting and training programs; and a risk information system and
financial reporting service for its members.

The Village’s payments to IRMA are displayed on the financial statements as expenditures/expenses in
appropriate funds. Each member assumes the first $2,500 of each occurrence, and [RMA has a mix of self-
insurance and commercial insurance at various amounts above that level.

Each member appoints one delegate, along with an altemate delegate, to represent the member on the Board of
Directors. The Village does not exercise any control over the activities of the Agency beyond its
representation on the Board of Directors.

Initial contributions are determined each year based on the individual member’s eligible revenue as delined in
the by-laws of [RMA and experience modification factors based on past member loss experience. Members
have a contractual obligation to fund any deficit of IRMA attributable to a membership year during which they
were a member. Supplemental contributions may be required to fund these deficits.

Limits of coverage effective as of April 30, 2010 are as follows:

Automobile Liability $ 10,000,000
General Liability 10,000,000
Public Officials Liability 10,000,000
Workers” Compensation 151,500,000
First Party Property 250,000,00G per occurrence
Employer’s Liability 1,000,000
Boiler/Machinery 50,000,000
Fidelity and Crime

a. Employee Theft 3,000,000

b. Forgery or Alteration 5,000,000

¢. Computer Fraud 5,000,000

d. Credit Card Forgery 5,000,000

e. Theft, Disappearance and Destruction

(including premises burglary) 2,500,000

Public Official Bond Blanket Statutory Limits

The Village purchases commercial insurance to cover its employees for health and accident claims, At fiscal
vear end, settlement claims have not exceeded insurance coverage and there were no probable unpaid claims
for which it retained risk and, and such, did not record a claims liability.
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10.  Contingent Liabilities

A. Litigation

The Village is a defendant in various lawsuits. Ahhough the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
deterininable, in the opinion of the Village’s management, the resclution of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Village.

B. Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantors are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantors. Any
disallowed claims, including amounts already coliected, may constitute a liability of the applicable
funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be
determined at this time, although the Village expects such amounits, if any, to be immaterial.

Other Post-Employment Benefits

In addition to providing the pension benefits described in Note 14, the Village provides post-employment
health care benefits (OPEB} for retired employees through a single-employer defined benefit plan. The
benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions and employer coniributions are governed by the Village and
can be amended by the Village through its personnel manual and union contracts. The plan does not issue a
separate report. The plan is not accounted for as a trust fund, as an irrevocable trust has not been established.
The cost of the plan is reported in the fund from which the benefits are paid,

Benefits Provided

The Village provides post-employment health care benefits to its retirees. To be eligible for benefits, an
employee must qualify for retirement under one of the Village’s retirement plans. Elected officials are eligible
for benefits if they gualify for retirement through the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund.

All health care benefits are provided through the Village's self-insured health plan. The benefit levels are the
same as those afforded to active emplovees. Benefits include general inpatient and outpatient medical
services; mental, nervous and substance abuse care; vision care; dental care; and prescriptions. Upon a retiree
reaching age 65 years of age, Medicare becomes the primary insurer and the Village’s plan becomes
secondary.

Membership
At April 30, 2010, membership consisted of:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Cuirently Receiving Benefits
and Terminated Employees Entitled to Benefits but

Not Yet Receiving Them 34
Current Emplovees

Vested 40

Nonvested 34
Total 108
Participating Employers _1
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11.

Other Post-Emplovment Benefits (Cont.)
Funding Policy

The Village negotiates the contribution percentage between the Village and employees through the union
contracts and personnel policy. Most retirees contribute 66.6% of the actuarially determined premium to the
plan, and the Village contributes the remainder to cover the cost of providing the benefits to the retirees via the
self-insured plan (pay as you go). Since the Village is self-insured, this amount fluctuates on an annual basis,
For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2019, retirees coniributed $230,730 and the Village contributed $206,113,
Active employees do not contribute to the plan until retirement.

Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEEB Obfigation

The Village had an actuarial valuation performed for the plan as of April 30, 2010 to determine the funded
status of the plan as of that date, as well as the employer’s annual required contribution {ARC) for the fiscal
year ended April 30, 2010. The Viliage’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed
to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2010 was as follows:

Percentage
Annual of Annual
Fiscal OPEB Employer OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Year End Cost Contributions Contributions Obligation
April 30, 2010 $ 385,508 206,113 53.5% 372,069
April 30, 2009 268,328 206,113 76.8% 192,674
April 30, 2008 253,480 123,021 48.5% 130,459
The net OPEB (NOPEBO) at April 30, 2010 was calculated as follows:
Annual Required Contribution $ 382,296
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 9,634
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (6,422}
Annual OPEB Cost 385,508
Contributions Made 206,113
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 179,355
Net OPEB Obligation, Beginning of Year 192,674
Net OPEB Obligation, End of Year § 372069
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOQIS

Naotes to the Financial Statements
April 30,2010

11.

Other Post-Employment Benelits (Cont.)
Annual OPEB Cosis and Net OPEB Obligation (Cont.)
Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of April 30, 2010 was as follows:

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) £ 5,658,441
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) 5,658,441
Funded Ratio (Actuarial Value of Plan Assets/AAL) 0.0%
Covered Payroll (Active Plan Members) 6,390,708
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 88.5%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the ARCs of the emplover are subject to continual revision as actuarial results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as
Required Supplementary Information following the Notes to the Financial Statements, presents multi-year
trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that
point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed 1o reduce short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

In the April 30, 2010 actuarial valuation, the entry-age actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included 5.0% investment rate of return {net of administrative expenses) and an initial annual
healthcare cost trend rate of 8.90% reduced by 0.25% each year to airive at an ultimate healthcare cost trend
rate of 6.0%. Both rates include a 3.0% inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets was $0. The
plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a
closed basis. The remaining amortization period at April 30, 2010 was 30 vears.
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2.

14.

Restrictions for Enabling Legislation

The government-wide statement of net assets reports $7,404,892 of net assets restricted for enabling legislation
which consists of the following:

Motor Fuel Tax ) 670,455
ES1i tax 108,969
TIF Pledged Taxes 5,659,679
TIF Developments 965,789

$ 74048092

Deferred Compensaticn Plan

The Village offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457. The plan, available to all employees at their option, permits participanis to defer a portion
of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until terrnination,
retirement, death, or an unforeseeable emergency occurs.

The assets of the plan are held in trust, with the Village as trustee, for the exclusive benefit of the plan
participants and their bencficiaries. The assets cannot be diverted for any other purpose. The Viilage’s
beneficial ownership of plan assets held in the trust is held for the future exclusive benefit of the participants
and their beneficiaries.

Employee Benefit Plans

A.

Iilinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Plan Description

The Village’s defined benefit pension pian, Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF}, provides
retirement, disability, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. IMRF acts as a common investment and administrative agent for local governments and
school districts in IHinois. The Village maintains accounts for regular employees and for Sheriff’s Law
Enforcement Personnel (SLEP) which provides benefit solely to a retired police chief. The Illinois
Pension Code establishes the benefit provisions of the plan which can only be amended by the Illinois
General Assembly. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements
and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained at www.lmrforg/pubs/ or by
writing to the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund, 2211 York Road, Suite 500, Oak Brook, {llinois
60523.

Funding Folicy

As set by statute, employees participating in the IMRF plan are required to contribute 4.50% of their
annual covered salary. The member rate is also established by state statute. The Village is required to
contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The employer rate for calendar year 2009 was 6.76% of
annual covered payroll. The employer contribution requirements are established and may be amended
by the IMRF Board of Trustees.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
April 390, 2010

14.

Emplovee Benefit Plans (Cont.)

A.

1llinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Cont.)
Annual Pension Cost, Net Pension Obligation and Actuarial Assumptions

For December 31, 2009, the Village's annual pension cost of $136,911 was equal to the Village's
required and actual contributions. The required contribution for 2009 was determined as part of the
December 31, 2007 actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method.

The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.50% investment rate of retwn (net of administrative and direct
investment expenses); (b) projected salary increases of 4% a year attributable 1o inflation; (c) additional
projected salary increases ranging from .4% to 11.6% per year, depending on age and service attributable
to seniority/merit; and {d) post-retirement benefit increases of 3% annually. The actuarial value of IMRF
plan assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market
value of investments over a five-year period with a 13% corridor between the actuarial and market value
of assets. The employer plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level
percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at the
December 31, 2007 valuation was 23 years.

As of December 31, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Regular Plan was 59.96% funded.
The actuarial accrued liability was $4,139,836, and the actuarial value of assets was $2 482 083,
resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $1,657,753. The covered payrcll for 2009 was
$2,025,311 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 81.85%. In conjunction with the
December 2009 actuarial valuation, the market value of investments was determined using techniques
that spread the effect of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-vear period
with a 20% corridor between the actuarial and market value of assets. In 2010, the unfunded actuarial
accrued liability is being amortized on a level of percentage of projected payroll on an open 30 year
basis.

The SLEP Plan was 85.59% funded. Actuarial accrued liability was $125,085 and actuarial value of
assets was $107,065, resulting in an underfunded actuarial liability of $18,020.

The Schedule of Funding Progress for the Regular and SLEP plans, presented as Required
Suppiementary Information following the Notes to the Financial Statements, presents multi-year trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative
to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits,

TREND INFORMATION
Actuarial Annual Annual Percentage Net
Valuation Required Pension of APC Pension
Date Contribution Cost (APC) Contribuied Oblization

12/31/G9 $ 151,905 151,905 100% 0
12/31/08 139,027 139,027 100% 0
12/31/07 123,456 123,456 100% 0
12/31/06 125,844 125,844 100% 0
12/31/05 18,079 18,979 100% 0
12/31/04 46,011 46,011 100% 0
12/31/03 17,386 17,586 100% 0



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30,2010

14, Employee Benefit Plans {Cont.)

B.

Police Pension
The most recent actuarial valuation is as of April 30, 2010.
Plan Description and Provisions

Police sworn personnel are covered by the Police Pension Plan, which is a defined benefit, single-
employer pension plan. Although this is a single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and
employee and employer contributions levels are governed by lllinois Compiled Statutes (Chapter 40-
Article 5/3) and may be amended only by the Illinois legislature. The Village accounts for the plan as a
pension trust fund. The plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report. The Village’s payroll for
employees covered by the Police Pension Plan for the year ended April 30, 2010 was $2,204,689. At
April 30, 2010, the Police Pension Plan membership consisted of:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits
and Terminated Employees Entitled to Benefits but

Not Yet Receiving Them 33
Current Employees

Vested 7

Nonvested _10
Total 61

The Police Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as weli as death and disability benefits. Employees
attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an
annual retirement benefit of 2.5% of final salary for each year of service up to 30 years, to a maximum of
75% of such salary. Employees with at lcast 8 years but less than 20 years of credited service may retire
at or after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit of 2.5% of final salary for each year of service.

The menthly pension of a covered employee who retired with 20 or more years of service after
January 1, 1997 shall be increased annually by 3% of the originally granted pension, following the first
anniversary date of retirement, and be paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years. For all increases
granted on or after July 1, 1993, the second and subsequent automatic annual increases shall be
calculated as 3% of the amount of the pension payable at the time of the increase.

Funding Policy

Covered employees are required to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the Police Pension Plan. If
an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of service, accumulated employee
contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest. The Village is required to contribute the
remaining amounts necessary to finance the plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary.
Effective July 1, 1993, the Village’s contributions must accumulate to the point where the past scrvice
cost for the Police Pension Plan is fully funded by the year 2033. Administrative expenses are gencrally
paid from plan assets.

Busis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employee and employer
contributions are recognized when due, pursuant to formal commitments, as well as statutory or
contractoal requirements. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the terms of the plan.

S
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30,2010

14.  Employeec Benefit Plans (Cont.)
B. Police Pension {Cont.)

Method Used to Value Investments
Investments are valued at market. Investment income is recognized as eamed.
Related Party Transactions

There are no securities of the employer or any other related parties included in plan assets, including any
loans.

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of April 30, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Police Pension Plan was 56.5%
funded. The actuarial accrued liability was $30,533,034, and the actuarial value of asseis was
$17,241,564, resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability of $13,291,470. The covered payroll
for 2010 was $2,204,689 and the ratio of the underfunded balance was thus 602.9%.

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information following the
Notes to the Financizl Statements, presents multi-vear trend information about whether the actuarial
value of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits.

Contributions
Village contributions are determined annuaily by an actuarial study using the entry age normal cost
methed, The valuation for fiscal 2010 was prepared as of April 30, 2010. Significant assumptions used

in the calculation include (a) a 6.5% return on investments, {b) projected salary increases of 5.5% per
year, and (c) a 23 vear amortization of the unfunded liability.

ANNUAL PENSION COST AND NET PENSION ASSET (OBLIGATION)

Annual Required Contribution $1.160,998
Interest on Net Pension Obligation (Asset) 33,272
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (25,386)
Annual Pension Cost 1,170,884
Contribution Made 1,049,020
Increase in the Net Pension Obligation 121,864
Net Pension Asset, Beginning of Year (19,817)
Net Pension Obligation, End of Year $ 102,047



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30,2010

14, Employee Benefit Plans (Cont.)

B. Police Pension (Cont.}

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Net
Fiscal Annual Annual Annual Percentage Pension
Year Required Pension Contributions of APC Obligation
Ended Contribution Cost (APC) Made Contributed (Asset)
4/30/10 $ 1,160,998 1,170,884 1,049,020 89.6% 102,047
4/30/09 926,540 937,776 960,202 102.4% (19,817)
4/30/08 827,276 835,848 670,893 80.3% (2,609)

C. Firefighters’ Pension
The most recent actuarial valuation is as of April 30, 2010.
Plan Description and Provisions

Fire sworn personnel are covered by the Firefighters® Pension Plan, which is a defined benefit, single-
employer pension plan. Although this is a single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and
employee and emplover contributions levels are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (Chapter 40-
Article 5/3) and may be amended only by the Illinois legislature. The Village accounts for the plan as a
pension trust fund. The plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report. The Village’s payroll for
employees covered by the Firefighters’ Pension Plan for the year ended April 30, 2009 was $1,729,523,
At April 30, 2010, the Firefighters’ Pension Plan membership consisted of:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits
and Terminated Employees Entitled to Benefits but

Not Yet Receiving Them 23
Current Employees

Vested 12

Nonvested 9
Total A4

The Firefighters’ Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits.
Employees attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more vears of creditable service are entitled to
receive an annual retirement benefit of 2.5% of firal salary for each year of service up to 30 vears, to a
maximum of 75% of such salary. Employees with at least 10 years but less than 20 years of credited
service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit of final salary for cach year of service,
ranging from 15% to 45.6%.



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30,2010

14. Employee Benefit Plans (Cont.)

C.

Firefighters’ Pension (Cont.}
Plan Description and Provisions (Cont.)

The monthly pension of a covered employee who retired with 20 or more years of service after
January 1, 1997 shall be increased annually following the first anniversary date of retirement and be paid
upon reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3% of the originally granted pension. Beginning with
increases granted on or after July 1, 1993, the second and subsequent automatic annual increases shall be
calculated as 3% of the amount of the pension payable at the time of the increase.

Funding Policy

Covered employees are required to contribute 9.455% of their base salary to the Firefighters® Pension
Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of service, accumulated
employee contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest. The Village is required to
contribute the remaining amounts necessary to finance the plan as actuariaily determined by an enrolled
actuary. Effective July 1, 1993, the Village’s contributions must accumulate to the point where the past
service cost for the Firefighters® Pension Plan is fully funded by the year 2033. Administrative expenses
are generally paid from plan assets.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employee and employer
contributions are recognized when due, pursuant to formal commitments, as well as statutory or
contractual requirements. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments
Investments are valued at market. Investment income is recognized as earned.
Related Party Transactions

There are no securities of the employer or any other related pacties included in plan assets, including any
loans.

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of April 30, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Firefighters’ Pension Plan was 62.56%
funded. The actuarial accrued liability was $20,147,029, and the actuarial value of assets was
£12,603,742, resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability of $7,543,287. The covered payroll
for 2010 was $1,729,523 and the ratio of the underfunded balance was thus 436.15%.

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information following the
Notes to the Financial Statements, presents multi-vear trend information about whether the actuarial
value of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits.

L
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30,2010

14. Employee Benefit Plans (Cont.)

C.

Firefighters’ Pensicn (Cont.}
Contributions

Village contributions are determined annually by an actuarial study using the entry age normal cost
method. The valuation for fiscal 2010 was prepared as of April 30, 2010. Significant assumptions used
in the calculation include (a} a 7.5% return on investments, (b} projected salary increases of 5.5% per
year, and (¢) a 25 year amortization of the unfunded liability.

ANNUAL PENSION COST AND NET PENSION ASSET (OBLIGATION)

Annual Required Contribution $ 551,977
Interest on Net Pension Obligation (Asset) 60,325
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (42,634)
Annuai Pension Cost 569,668
Contribution Made 662,303
Decrease in the Net Pension Obligation (92,635
Net Pension Obligation, Beginning of Year 42,6356
Net Pension Asset, End of Year §  (49.979)

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Net
Fiscal Annual Annual Annual Percentage Pension
Year Required Pension Contributions of APC Obligation
Ended Contribution Cost (APC) Made Contributed {Asset)
4/30/10 5 531977 569,668 662,303 116.3% (49,979)
4/30/09 445,688 464,303 441,516 95.1% 42,656
4/30/08 579,160 545,946 464,547 85.1% (19,867}
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Notes to the Financial Statements
April 30,2010

14.  Enployee Benefit Plans (Cont.)

D.

Significant Actuarial Assumptions

The information presented in the notes and the required supplementary schedules was determined as part
of the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial
vaiuation is as follows:

Minois
Municipal Police Firefighters'
Retirement Pension Pension
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Entry-Age Entry-Age
Normal Normal Normal
Asset Valuation Method Market Value Market Value Market Vaiue

Amortization Method

{a)
{b)

©

()

(e}

Remaining Amortization Period
Ratio of Return on Invesiment of

Present and Future Assets

Projected Salary Increases -
Aftributable to Inflation

Additional Projected Salary
Increases - Attributable 1©
Seniority/Meril

Postretirement Benetit Increases

Level Percentage
of Projected
Payrall -
Closed Basis

23 Years
7.50%
Compounded
Annually
4.00%
Compounded
Annually

0.4% to 10%

3.00%

Level Percentage
of Projected
Payroll -
Closed Basis

23 Years

6.50%
Compounded
Annualiy

5.30%
Compounded
Annually

{Note : Separate
information for
{b) and (c) not

available)

3.00%
Compounded
Annually

Level Pereentage
of Projected
Payroll -
Closed Basis

23 Years

7.50%
Compounded
Annualiy

3.530%
Compounded
Annually

{(Note . Separate
information for
{b) and {c) not

availabie)

3.00%
Compounded
Annually
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15.

Joint Venture

The Village participates in the West Suburban Consolidated Dispatch Center (WSCDC), a governmental joint
venture with the Village of Oak Park and the Village of Elmwood Park. The joint venture was formed in 1999
under the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (ILCS 5, Act 220) for the joint and mutual operation of
centralized communication system. WSCDC commenced operations on May 1, 2002,  All activities of
WSCDC are costs shared by the members. Each member’s share for each fiscal vear of operations will be
based on the total number of calls dispatched by the member in the preceding fiscal year divided by total calls
dispatched by all members during the preceding fiscal vear. Each member's cost-sharing allocation is
approved by the Board of Directors of WSCDC anunually. Either member may withdraw from the joint
venture upon one year's netice.

Buring fiscal 2010, the Village's allocated cost share totaled 5563,261 for operational expenses and $31,323
for debt service payments, which is charged to General Government expenditures in the General Fund.

Financial statcments may be obtained by contacting WCSDC at 400 Park Avenue, River Forest, illinois
60305.
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Required Supplementary Information

1lingis Municipal Retirement Fund

Schedule of Funding Progress

April 30, 2010

Unfunded UAAL asa
Actuearial Acluarial {Overfunded) Percentage
Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Liabikity (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (@) () {b-a) {a/b) {c) {b-a)/c
12/31/2009 $ 2,482.083 4,139,836 1,637,753 59.96 % 2025311 81.85 %
12/31/2008 3.087.762 4,344,511 1,256,749 71.07 2,062,721 60.93
12/31/2007 4,765,382 4,508,237 {167,143) 103.63 1,941,131 {(8.61)
12/31/2006 5,310,356 5,127,687 (182.669) 103.56 1,981,790 {9.22)
12/31/2005 4,830,518 4,596,846 {233,672) 105.08 1,860,726 {12.56)
12/31/2004 5,116,822 4,795,666 {321.136) 106.70 1,804,339 (17.80)
12/31/2003 5,585,686 4,756,578 {829,.108) 117.43 1,813,042 {45.73)
12/31/2002 5,600,126 4,514,603 (1,085,523} 124.04 1,937,619 {56.02)
12/31/2001 5,647,000 4.039.036 (1,607,364} 139.79 1.934.003 (83.11)
12/31/2000 5,255 589 3,653,242 {1,602.347) 143 86 1,863,251 (86.00)

On a market basis, the actuarial value of asscts as of December 31, 2009 is $2,317,263. On a markel bagis, the funded ratio would

be 35.97%.



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINCOIS
Reguired Supplementary fnformation
1MRF Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel Fund

Schedule of Funding Progress

April 30, 2010
Unfunded UAAL asa
Actuarial Actuarial (Overfunded) Pcrcentage
Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroil Payroll
Date {a) {b) {b-a} {a/b} (¢} {b-a)/c
12/31/2009 $ 107,065 125,085 18,020 8559 % 119.005 NA L %
12/31/2008 87,103 122,374 35271 71.18 N/A
12731720067 81,117 118,859 37,742 68.25 NIA
12/31/2006 N/A N/A
12/31/2005 N/A N/A
12/31/2004 N/A N/A
12/31/2003 N/A N/A
12/31/2002 N/A N/A
12/31/20801 N/A N/A
12/31/2000 N/A N/A,

On a market basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2009 15 $105,021. On a market basis, the funded ratio would

he 83.96%.
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Required Supplementary Information

Police Pension [Fund

Schedule of Funding Progress

April 30, 2010

Unfunded UAAL asa
Actuarial Actuarial {Overfonded} Percentage
Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assels Liability (AAL) {UAAL) Ratig Pavroll Payroli
Date {a) {b) {b-a} (a/b) {c) (b-a)/c
4/30/2010 $ 17241564 30,533,034 13,291,478 3647 % 2,204,689 602.87 %
4/30/2009 15032713 29,697,223 14,664,510 30.62 2,407,508 609,12
4/30/2008 17.471,716 28,121,701 10,649,983 62.13 2,223,321 479.01
473012007 17,773,328 27.081,717 9308389 65.63 2,120,699 438.93
4/30/2006 17,128,123 23,638.699 6,530,576 7240 2045348 31929
4/30/2003 16,635,843 23.088.932 6,453,089 72.05 1,962,602 328.80
4/30/2004 16,367,686 22,395 414 6,031,728 73.07 1,768,205 341.12
413072003 16,169,244 20,672,337 4,503,093 78.22 1.800.094 250.16
4/3(/2002 16,032,574 19,308,251 3,275,677 83.03 1.681,483 194.81
4/30/2001 14,528,432 16,834,800 2,306,368 86.30 1,646,737 140.06
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Required Supplementary Information
Firefighters' Pension Fund

Schedule of Funding Progress

April 30, 2010

Unfunded UAAL asa
Actoarial Actuarial (Overfunded) Percentage
Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) {UAALY Rauig Payroll Payroll
Date {a) {b} {b-a) {a/b) {c) {h-a)c
4/30/2010 $ 12.603.742 20,147,029 7,543,287 62,56 % 1,729,523 436.15 %
4/30/2009 11,166,403 19.622,352 8,455,949 56.91 1.691.872 49980
4/30/2008 13,492,047 18,788,488 3,296,441 71.81 1,637,868 32337
4/30/2007 13,296,236 16,846,596 3,550,357 78.93 1.736,504 204 .45
4130720006 12,775,165 16,507,681 3,732,516 77.39 1,549,807 24(0.84
4/30/2005 12,442 231 15,000,643 2,558412 82.94 1,466,927 174.41
4/30/2004 12,242,583 14,369,368 2,126,785 83.20 1,453,460 146.33
4/30/2003 12,080,540 13,164,239 1,083,699 91.77 1,357,181 79.85
473042002 12.008.076 12,313,504 305,428 97.52 1,296,768 23.55
4/30/2001 16,866,565 11,065,752 199,183 98.20 1,234,157 i6.14
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Reguired Supplementary Information

Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan

Schedule of Funding Progress

April 360, 2010

Unfonded UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial {Overfunded) Percentage
Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assels Liability {AAL} (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payrali
Date {a) (b} {b-a) {a’t) {c) {b-a)'c
4/30/2010 3 3,658,441 5,658,441 0.00 % 6.390.708 88.54 %
4/30/2009 5.658.441 3.638.441 0.00 6.390.708 88.54
43072008 3.854.471 3.854.471 0.00 6,340,727 603.79

The Village implemented GASB No. 45 for the fiscal vear ended April 30, 2008
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2010

{With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended April 30. 2009)

Revenucs
Taxes

Intergovernmental
Liccnses and Permits
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeit
Investiment Income
Miscellancous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current

General Government

Public Safety

Public Works Department
Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures

Other Finaflcing Sources (Uses}

Transfers In

Transfers Cut
Saie of Capital Assets
Total Other Financing Sources (Lses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances
Beginning

Ending

2010
Variance
with Final
Budget
Qriginal Final Over 2009
Budset Budget Actual {(Under) Actual
$ 5,801,104 5,801,104 5,827,971 126,867 5,607,593
2,732,846 2,732,846 3,369,763 836,919 2,753,731
959,875 959,975 817,869 {142,106} 729,008
1,349,761 1,349,761 1,408,020 58,259 1,086,744
281,730 281,750 255,951 (25,799} 228,375
25,000 25,000 12,346 (12,454} 39,640
75,742 75,742 797,641 721,899 (233.813)
11,226,178 11,226,178 12,789,763 1.563.585 10,209,278
1,875.872 1,875,872 1,717,303 (158,569) 1,808,789
7,048,123 7,123,506 7,423,037 301,331 7,058,708
2.661.307 2.661.307 2,269,272 (392,035) 2,982,582
11.585.302 11.660.685 11411612 (249.073) 11,850,079
{359,124} {434.507) 1,378.151 1.812,658 {1,640.801)
532,390 532,390 1,188,537 656,147 574,990
{165,125) (163,125) (165,123)
7.387 7.387

367,265 367,265 1.036,799 663,534 574,990
$ 8.141 (67.242} 2,408,950 2,476,192 {1,065.811)
2,266,365 3,332,176

46753135 2,266,363

See accompanying Notes to the Required Supplementary Information.
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information
April 30,2010

1.

2.

Legal Compliance and Accountability
Budgetary Control
The Village follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements.

i) The Village Administrator submits to the Village Board of Trustees a proposed operating budget for the
fiscal year commencing the following May 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and
the means of financing therm.

iiy  Public hearings are conducted by the Village 1o obtain taxpayer comments.
iti}y  Subsequently, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance,

iv} Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management confrol device during the year for the
general, special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds.

v) Budgets for the governmental funds for which budgets have been adopied are adopted on a basis
consistent with GAAP.

vi) Budgetary authority lapses at year end.

vii}  State law requires that “expenditures be made in conformity with appropriations/budget.” As under the
Budget Act, transfers between line items and departments may be made by administrative action.
Amounts to be transferred between funds require Village Board approval. The level of legal control is
generally the fund budget in total.

viii) Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, with the exceptions of Board-approved transfers which
were not material in relation to the budget taken as a whole.

ix) The Village Administrator is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any
fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be communicated to the
Village Board.

During the year ended Aprii 30, 2010, there were amendments to various revenue and expense accounts. The
budget was last amended December 14, 2009. The net changes to budgeted expenses were as foliows:

Net
Increase
General $ 75,383
Pledged Taxes 5,243,800
Alternaie Revenue Debt Service 464,150
Excess of Actual Expenditures/Expenses over Budget in Individual Funds
Expenditures exceed budget in the following funds for the vear ended April 30, 2010:
Budget Expenditures Excess
Motor Fuet Tax Fund £ 106,975 19,336 {8.381)
Pledged Taxes Fund 6,360,025 6,360,070 (45)



COMBINING, INDIVIDUAL FUND, AND CAPITAL ASSET
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES



NONMAJOR GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS -
COMBINING STATEMENTS



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
April 30, 2010

Aszsets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Taxes

Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Deferred Revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Unreserved - Undesignated

Teotal Liabilities and Fund Balances

Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Projects Total
Motor Alternate Capital Nonmajor

Fuel Revenue Equipment (Governmental

Tax Debt Service Replacement Funds
168,364 338,894 132,090 639,348
476,853 1,266,840 1,773,693
26,370 107,631 134,001
671,587 446,525 1,428,530 2,547,042
1,132 30,867 31,999
107,631 107,631
1,132 107,631 30,867 139,630
670,455 338,854 1,398,063 2,407,412
671,387 446,525 1,428,930 2,547,042
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Nonmajor Governimental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended April 30, 2000

Revenues
Taxes
Intergovernmental
interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current
Highways and Streets
Debt Service
Principal Retirement
Interest
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances
Beginning of Year

End of Year

Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Projects Total
Motor Alternate Capital Nonmajor
Fuel Revenue Equipment Governmental
Tax Debt Service Replacement Funds
3 256,479 256,479
315,452 315,452
12,643 4,165 42253 59,061
838 838
328,095 260,644 43,091 631,830
19,356 19,356
175,000 175,000
44,751 44,751
235,764 235,764
15,356 219,751 235,764 474,871
308,739 40,893 (192,673) 156,959
165,125 165,125
(250,535) (22,400) (272,935}
- {250,535) 142,725 (167,810}
308,739 (209,642} {49,948} 49,149
361,716 548,536 1,448,011 2,358,263
3§ 670,455 338,894 1,398,063 2407412
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GENERAL FUND
(Major Fund)

The General Fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with general governments
which are not required to be accounted for in another fund.



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
(General Fund

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2010
{With Comparative Actual for the Year Ended April 30, 2009)

Variance
from Final
Final Budget 2009
Budget Actual Qver {Under) Actual
Revenues
Taxes
Property Tax 4,955,104 5,236,676 281,572 4,826,010
Utility Tax 756,000 621,328 (134,672) 713,256
Transfer Tax 90,000 69,967 {20,033) 68,327
Total Taxes 5,801,104 5,927,971 126,867 5,607,593
Intergovernmental
Wireless Tax 6G,000 62,541 2,541 73,160
Communication Tax 516,000 510,374 (5,626 516,635
Sales Tax 794,907 1,767,772 012,865 781,536
State Income Tax 1,051,227 897,371 (153,856} 1,024,643
Replacement Tax 127,552 118,604 {8,948) 143,404
Contributions and Granis 19,160 50,584 31,424 96,322
E911 Tax 118,000 108,969 (9,031} 118,001
Restaurant Tax 46,000 113,550 67,550
Total Intergovernmental 2,732,846 3,569,765 836,919 2,753,731
Licenses and Permits
Business Licenses 92,180 83,000 {9,180) 56,305
Liquor Licenses 16,500 18,340 1,840 16,900
Vehicle Licenses 183,000 180,549 (2,431) 183,656
Construction/Building Permits 517,420 390,764 {126,626) 324,733
Cable Television Fees 144,000 140,444 (3,556} 143,930
Pet 1,600 3,170 1,570 3,100
Tent Licenses 200 570 370 306
Bonfire Permits 90 90 60
Cab 75 12 {63) 24
Film Crew Licenses 5,000 900 {4,100)
Total Licenses and Permits 959,975 817,869 {142,106) 729,008
Charges for Services
Garbage Collection Charges 835514 853,344 17,830 582,550
Parking Lot Fees 109,660 102,731 {6,269) 108,538
State Highway Maintenance Fees 45,744 47.174 1,430 45,434
Ambulance Charges 210,600 195,334 (14,666) 211,532
Sidewalk Program 22,993 21,244 (1,749) 25,730
Trees and DED Injections 12,800 {12,800) 1,050
WSCDC Janitorial Service 4,650 4,816 166 3,211
Workers' Compensation Insurance 25,560 70,317 44,757 18,112
Park District Gasoline 7,500 6,798 {702) 11,267
NSF 500 375 (125) 500
Towing Fees 73,000 104,000 31,000 76,550
Police Reports 2,500 1.887 {613) 2,210
Total Charges for Services 1,349 761 1,408,020 58,259 1,086,744
68 {Cont.)



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual
Year Ended April 30, 2010

{(With Comparative Actual for the Year Ended April 30, 2009)

Revenues
Fines and Forfeits
Court Fines
Parking Tickets
DUI! Fines
Building Construction Citations
Total Fines and Forfeits

Investment Income
Interest and Dividends

Net Change in Fair Value of Invesiments

Total Investment Income

Miscellaneous
Wireless Leases
Net Change in IRMA Deposit
Other
Total Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Variance
from Final
Final Budget 2009
Budget Actual Over {(Under) Actual
80,000 71,581 {8,419) 47,964
198,000 181,048 (16,952} 178,908
2,250 (2,250}
1,500 3,322 1,822 1,503
281,750 255,951 (25,799} 228,375
25,000 14,219 (10,781) 39,640
(1,673) (1,673)
25,000 12,546 (12,454) 39,640
32,242 32,250 & 31,31G
346,970 346,970 (318,330)
43,500 418,421 374,921 51,207
75,742 797,641 721,899 (235,813)
§ 11,226,178 12,789,763 1,563,585 10,209,278
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2010

With Comparative Actual for the Year Ended Apri] 30, 2009

General Government
Administration
Personal Services

Salaries - Regular
Specialist Pay
Performance Pay
Insurance Refusal Reimbursement
Salaries - Part Time
Overtime
FICA
Medicare
IMRF
Employee Assistance Program
Wellness Program
Health Insurance
Health Insurance - Retirees
Life Insurance
Total Personal Services

Contractual Services

Communications
Auditing
Actuarial Scrvices
Consulting Services
Data Processing
Vehicle Sticker Program
Health/Inspection Services
Unempioyment Claims
Bank Fecs
Liability Insurance
IRMA Liability Insurance
Maintenance of Vehicles
Maintenance of Office Eguipment
Training
Community Support Services
Travel and Meeling Expense
Dues and Subscriptions
Printing
Village Newsletter
Medical Examinations
Advertising/Legal Notice
Employee Recognition

Total Contractual Services

Variance
from Final
Final Budget 20069
Budget Actual Over ([nder} Actual
259,745 229,191 (30,538} 281,914
23 23
9,767 2,820 {6,947 4.633
158 158
25,956 32,755 6,799 26,467
1,205 494 (711 1,120
19,269 15,588 {3,681} 18.360
4,687 3,747 {940) 4,467
24,355 18,555 (3.800) 20,773
1,476 1.323 (153) 1.444
1,050 5,310 4.260 7,602
34,715 31,599 (3,116) 30,633
4,155 4,691 536 4,288
1,581 1,257 {324) 2,732
387.965 347,509 (40.456) 404,453
14,246 13,084 {1,162) 15,608
17,664 14,891 {2.773) 21.601
6,100 6,100 6,100
G8.400 52,900 {45,500} 17,532
43,332 53,165 9,813 45,251
10,650 9,295 (755} 10,850
53,694 33,385 {20.309) 51,345
3,000 26,997 23,897 7,260
6,205 9,050 2,845 10,031
299,406 287,791 (11,615) 254,943
30,000 16,242 (10,758} 22,333
374 460 86 590
3.738 3,483 (255) 4,161
2.500 1,010 {1.490) 1.512
17.760 14,564 {3.196) 17.848
1,330 730 (620} 2,731
14,973 18,851 3.878 15,754
1,205 2074 869 1,361
6,825 4,077 (2.748) 11.354
811
1,775 540 (1,235) 1,695
2.323 1,225 (1,100 2.459
634,942 572,914 (62.028) 523,132
70 {Cont.)



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Cont.)
Year Ended April 30, 2010
With Comparative Actual for the Year Ended April 30, 2009

Variance
from Final
Final Budget 2009
Budget Actual Over {Under) Actual
General Government (Cont.)
Administration {Cont.)
Commodities
Office Supplies 16,625 13,118 {3,507} 16,669
Office Equipment 2,800 1,791 {1,009} 7,619
Gasoline and Oil 3,055 2,864 (1913 2,633
Postage 10,500 15,222 4.722 11,396
Total Commoditics 32.980 32,995 i35 38,317
Total Adminisiration 1.G55.887 953,418 {102,469} 965,902
Emergency 911
Contractual Services
Telephone Line Charges 13,000 10,788 (2,212) 11,834
IT Support 7.549 7.94%
Maintenance of Equipment 500 {500)
Training 430 {450) 790
Travel and Meetings 1.300 681 {619) 1.261
WSCDC Contribution 556,777 563,261 6,484 300.924
Total Emergency 911 572,027 582,679 10,652 514,809
Police and Fire Commission
Contractual Services
Secretarial Services 3,948 8,378 4,430 5,021
Legal Services 470 3,863 3,393 10,251
Travel and Meetings 423 (423) 23
Dues and Subscriptions 353 375 22 375
Candidate Screening 8.084 6,365 {1,719 8.028
Testing 7.320 36,466 28,946 1,256
Advertising/Legal Notice 15.300 5.242 {10,058} 496
Total Contractual Services 36.098 60,635 24,561 26,350
Commodities
Office Supplies 94 213 19 13
Postage 188 26 {162) il
Total Commaodities 282 239 {43} 124
Total Police and Fire Commission 36.380 60,928 24.548 26.474
71 {Cont.)



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Cont.)

Year Ended April 30, 2010

With Comparative Actual for the Year Ended April 30, 2009

General Government (Cont.)
Legal Services
Contractual Services
Legal Services
Village Attorney
Village Proseculor

Total Legal Services

Total General Government

Public Safety
Police Department
Personal Services

Salaries - Swomn

Salaries - Regular

Crossing Guards

Specialisi Pay

Holiday Pay

Overtime Pay

Badge Overtime

Educational Incentives

Performance Pay

Insurance Refusal Reimbursement

FICA

Medicare

IMRF

Health Insurance

Health Insurance - Retirces

Lifc [nsurance

Contribution to Police Pension
Total Personal Services

Contractual Services

Communications

Consulting Services
Administrative Adjudication
Data Processing

Animal Control

Maintenance of Office Equipment
Maintenance of Vehicles
Training

Tuition Reimbursement
Community Support Services
Badge Grant Programs
Travel and Meeling Expense
Dues and Subscriptions

Variance
from Final

Final Budget 2009

Budget Actual Over (Under) Actual
105,578 41,650 {03,928} 149,361
98,000 38,578 (39,422) 134,746
8.000 20,050 12,050 17.497
211.378 120,278 (51,300) 301.604
1,875,872 1.717.303 (158.569) 1,808,789
2,094,822 2,020,924 (73.898) 2,153,298
113,589 112,934 {655) 113,938
79,700 84,889 5,189 80,508
16,140 22915 6,773 23,032
82,484 83,351 2,867 91,261
102,125 157.833 55,708 94.632

5,254 5,254
30,530 30,840 280 34,753
A 4,521 {5.249) 10,138
1.800 5275 {2,525)

10,381 12,343 1,962 12,041
34,529 31.489 (3,040} 32,132
20,157 18,229 {1,928) 11,166
283,970 315436 21,466 291,574
83,322 72,039 (11,283} 66,507
7.113 6,620 (493) 6,244
931,173 1,048.959 117.786 960,202
3.817.625 4.035,849 118,224 3.984.046
8.000 7.344 {656) 9,875
22,000
29,100 19,975 {9,127) 22,996
4,400 4,105 (295) 5,574
4,020 4,020 2,997
13,347 12,637 {710) 15,069
31,112 36,717 5.605 34,773
15,260 12,631 (2.629) 9,418
11,399
1,925 10.322 (GO3) 8,064
1,625 4,595 2,970 1,686
1,223 324 (701) 575
6,019 5,763 (236) 5,448
72 {Cont.)



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINGIS
General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Cont.}
Year Ended April 30, 2010
With Comparative Actual for the Year Ended April 30, 2609

Variance
from Final
Final Budget 2009
Budget Actual Over (Under) Actual
Public Safety {Cont.)
Police Department {(Cont.}
Contractual Services (Cont.)
Printing 3,847 4,147 300 2,852
Medical Examinations 4,340 1,477 {2,863) 4,405
Advertising/Legal Notice 880 {880) 1,062
Total Contractual Services 130,080 124.255 {5,825) 178,193
Commoditics
Office Supplies 10,355 8,640 {1,715) 7,725
Gas and Ol 61,750 46,142 {15,608) 50,719
Uniforms - Sworn Personnel 25,400 27.815 2413 20,883
Uniforms - Other Personnel 1,035 743 (292} 465
Prisoners' Care 2,100 1,895 (205) 1,562
Operating Supplies 43.776 35,742 (8.034) 37,694
Total Commeditics 144,416 120,977 {23,439} 128,048
Total Police Department 4,192,121 4,281,081 88,960 4,290,287
Fire Department
Personal Services
Salaries - Sworn 1,589,807 1,585,506 {4,301} 1,549,112
Specialist Pay 105,701 104,742 (959) 98,535
Holiday Pay 64,971 64,852 {L19) 61457
Qvertime Pay 134,200 142,427 8,227 169,874
Educational Incentives 13,875 12,675 {1,200 12,975
Performance Pay 6,266 6,266 5.997
Insurance Refusal Reimbursement 1,075 1.075
ICMA Retirement Contract 4,935 4,768 (167) 4,768
Medicare 23,104 19,958 (3,146} 20,302
Health Insurance 233,400 289,702 56,302 215,624
Heaith Insurance - Retirees 33,769 771,643 23,874 60,587
Life Insurance 5.811 4,862 (549} 5,174
Contribution to Fire Pension 354,737 662,297 107.560 441,683
Total Pcrsonal Services 2,790,376 2976773 186,197 2,646,088
Contractual Services
Cominunications 7,700 5.886 {1,814} 4,468
Professional Services 32,000 52.000 4,395
Data Processing 1,600 1,310 {290) 967
Maintenance of Equipment 9,175 7.254 (1,921) 6,699
Maintenance of Vehicles 29,300 29,365 (195) 24,855
Maintenance of Office Equipment 1.850 2,771 921 1,679
Training 8,900 3.048 {4,952} 3.330
Communily Supporl Services 13,230 10.000 {3.250) 13,100
73 {(Cont.)



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actwal (Cont.)

Year Ended April 30, 2010

With Comparative Actual for the Year Ended April 30, 2009

Public Safety {Cont.}
Fire Department (Cont.)
Contractual Services (Cont.)

Travel and Meeting Expense

Dues and Subscriptions
Medical Examination

Totai Contractual Services

Commodities
Office Supplies
Gas and il
Uniforms
Operating Supplies
Total Commodities

Total Fire Department
Total Public Safety

Public Works
Administration and Operations
Personal Services
Salaries
Certification Pay
Overtime Pay
Performance Pay

Insurance Refusal Reimbursement

Temporary Help

HCMA Retirement Contribution

FICA

Medicare

IMRF

Flealih Insurance

Health Insurance - Retirees

Life Insurance

Total Personal Services

Contractual Scrvices
Communications
Consulting Services
Data Processing
Custodial Service
nspections
JULIE Participation

Maintenance of Equipment

Maintenance of Vehicles

Maintenance Traffic/Street {.ights

Variance
trom Final

Final Budget 2009

Budget Actual Over {Under} Actual
4,350 3.743 (607) 2,306
3.160 2,838 (302) 2,622
9.824 12,287 2.463 7.480
§9,309 131,362 42.0353 71,921
3,000 2,587 (413} 846
14,500 10,858 {3,642} 15,948
7130 7.009 (141} 16,685
26,850 15,367 {11.483) 17.533
51.500 35,821 {15.679 50.412
2.931.385 3,143.956 212.571 2,768.421
7.123,506 7.425,037 301,531 7.058.708
544,867 519,057 {21,810} 630,765
8.900 4,275 {4.625) 5,385
41,000 32,958 {8,002} 85,264
10,570 10.570 12,252

1,800 1,650 {150}

6817
2,820 2,724 {96) 2,724
31978 34,526 (3.452) 44.542
8.921 8.180 (7413 10,622
43,985 41.423 (2.362) 49,203
82,632 §2.813 i81 83,657
16,961 18,021 (6,940} 3,073
1.463 j,172 {(290) 1.516
707.897 749,409 {48,488} 538,520
7,760 7.349 “411) 8,248
2,000 (2,000) 761
2,700 2,700 2,700
2.650
15,000 12,3069 (2,691} 43,260
563 3%0 {173} 440
2,000 673 (1,327 3,077
13,283 18,278 4,993 18,182
32,924 20,949 (11,975 53,873
{Cont.}
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual {Cont.}
Year Ended April 30, 2010

With Comparative Actual for the Year Ended April 30, 2009

Public Works {Cont.}
Administration and Operations (Cont.}

Contractual Services {Cont.)
Tree Maintenance
Maintenance Buildings and Grounds
Maintenance Sidewalks
Maintenance Streets
Training
Travel and Meeiing Expense
{Jues and Subscriptions
Medical FExaminations
Advertising/l.egal Notice
Dumping Fees
Small Claims
Street Light Electricity

Total Contractual Services

Commodities
Office Supplics
Gas and Ol
Uniforms
Vcehicle Parts
Operating Equipment
Trees
Snow and Ice Control
Total Commodilies

Capital Qutlay
Street Improvements

Total Administration and Operations

Sanitation
Conlractual Services
Collection and Disposal

Commaodities
Opcrating Supplics
Refuse and Bulk Item Stickers
Total Commodilics
Total Sanitation

Total Public Works

Total Expenditures

Variance
from Final
Final Budget 2009
Budpet Actual Over (Under) Actual

60,750 40,664 {20.086) 73,407
26,200 15,042 (11.158) 23,351
30,700 38,398 7.698 42 088
253

1,460 460 {1,000) 936
605 478 {127 4,798
2,555 2,262 (293) 2,343
1,594 346 {1,248) 1,088
1,500 547 {(953) 1,246
73,000 76,466 6,466 109,904
1,000 17,489 16,489 {7.352)
48.000 36,741 8,741 57.693
323,596 314,541 (5.055) 447 848
3,000 2,756 (244) 4,306
40,600 30,154 (9,846) 41,913
3,950 1,496 {2,434) 6,042
8.510 6,042 {2,468) 6,455
42,630 31,895 (10,7535} 36,642
18.00¢ 5,707 (12,293 24,561
72,144 50.097 {22.043) 69,271
188.250 128,147 (60.103) 212,190
514.850 250,335 {264,315} 496,902
1.824,593 1.442 632 {381.961) 2,095,460
835,514 825,362 (10,152) 869.371
1.200 1,278 78 2,534
13,217

1.200 1,278 78 17.751
836.714 826.640 (10,0674 887.122
2.661.307 2,269,272 {392.035) 2.982.382
$ 11,660,685 11.411.612 {249.073) 11.850.079




SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Motor Fuel Tax Fund (Nonmajor Fund) is used to account for the activities involved with street
maintenance, improvements and eonstruction. Financing is provided by the Village’s share of
State gasoline taxes. State law requires these gasoline taxes to be used to maintain streets.



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Motor Fuel Tax Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2010
{(With Comparative Actual for the Year Ended April 30, 200%)

Variance
with Final
Budget
Original Final Over 2009
Budget Budget Actual {(Under) Actual
Revenues
Intergovernmental § 304,184 304,184 315452 11,268 303,619
Interest 5,000 5,000 12,643 7.643 13,223
Total Revenues 305,184 300,184 328,095 i§,911 316,842
Expenditures
Current
Highway and Streets 10,975 10,975 19,356 8,381 88,314
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 298209 298,209 308,739 10,530 228,528
Fund Batances
Beginning 361,716 133,188
Ending 670,455 361,716
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Pledged Taxes Fund (Major Fund) is used to account for the accumulation of resources for the
payment of the General Obligation Bond Series 1999 and 2003A. Bonds were issued to finance
various expenses in the River Forest Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District. Financing is
provided by property taxes and local and State sales taxes.

Alternate Revenue Debt Service Fund (Nonmajor Fund) is used to account for the accumulation of
resources for the payment of the General Obligation Bond Series 2005 and 2008A. The 2005 and
2008A series bonds were issued to finance Library building improvements and Village street
improvements, respectively. Financing is provided by property taxes.



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Pledged Taxes Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2010

{With Comparative Actual for the Year Ended April 30, 2009)

Revenues
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Generat Government
TIF Surplus Distributions
Debt Service
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures

(ther Financing Uses
Transfers Qut

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Baiances
Beginning

Ending

Variance
with Final
Budget
Original Final Over 2009
Budget Budget Actual {Under) Actual
$ 4,538,772 4,538,772 5,583,789 1,045,017 4,453,956
1,585,142 1,585,142 127,030 (1,458,112) 1,570,578
252.000 252,000 208,240 {43,760} 248961
6,375,914 6,375.914 5,919,059 {456,855) 6,273,495
3,266,047 3,266,047
995,060 2,810,000 2,965,000 155,000 1,905,000
121,225 283,978 125,023 {154,955} 2,734,256
1,116,225 6,360,025 6,360,070 45 4,639,256
5,259,689 15,889 (441,011) (456,900} 1,634,239
(2,952.308) {3.799,670) (3,547,362} 252,308 {3,040,226)
§ 2,307,381 (3,783,781) (3,988,373} (204,592) {1,405,987)
9,648,052 11,054,036
5,659,679 9,648,052
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VILEI.AGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Alterrate Revenue Debt Service Fund

sched ule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

vear Ended April 30, 2010

{with_Comparative Actual for the Year Fnded April 30, 2009)

Variance
with Final
Budget
Original Final Over 2000
Budget Budgct Actual (Under) Actoal
Reveriues
Taxes $ 219,831 219,831 256,479 36,648 159,986
Interest 2,250 2,250 4,165 1,915 4,301
Total Revenues 222,081 222,081 260,644 38,563 164,287
Expenditures
Debt Service
Principal 175,000 175,000 175,000 170,000
Infterest 44,821 44,821 44,751 (70) 21,002
13 ond Issuance Cosis 31,207
Tatal Expenditures 216,821 219,821 219,751 {70} 222209
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures 2,260 2,260 40,893 38,613 {(57,922)
Other Financing Sources {Uses})
Bond Procecds 1,035,000
Transfer Out (464,150) (250,535) 213,615 (496,502)
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) - (464,150) (250,533) 213,615 538,098
Net Change in Fund Balances S 2260 {461.890) (209,642) 252,248 480,176
Fund Balances
Beginning 548.536 68,360
Ending 338,894 548,336
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

TIF Economic Development Fund (Major Fund) is used to account for activities involved with the
River Forest TIF District maintenance, improvement and construction. Financing is provided by
property taxes, municipal retailers occupation tax, municipal service occupation tax and related
capital improvements.

Capital Equipment Replacement Fund (Nenmajor Fund) is used to account for financial resources to
be used for the replacement of equipment,



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
TIF Economic Development Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2010

{With Comparative Actual for the Year Ended April 30, 2009)

Variance
with Final
Budget
Original Final Over 2009
Budget Budget Actual {Linder) Actual
Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 511,646 511,646 337,288 (174,358) 336,666
Interest 5,000 5.000 4,431 (569) 5,248
Total Revenues 516,646 316,646 341,719 {174,927) 341,914
Expenditures
Current
General Government 2,442,761 2,442,761 2,051,282 (391,479) 1,820,015
Capital Outlay 441,306 441,306 425912 (15,394) 431,558
Total Expenditures 2,884,067 2,884,067 2477194 {406,873) 2,251,573
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures (2,367.421) (2,367 421) (2,135,475) 231,946 {1,909,639)
Other Financing Sources (Lises)
Transfers In 2,952,308 2,952,308 2,700,000 (252,308) 3,040,226
Transfers Cut {68,240) 168,240} {68,240) (78,088
Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) 2,884,068 2,884,068 2,631,760 {252,308) 2,962,138
Net Change in Fund Balances 5 516,647 516,647 496,285 (20,362) 1,052,479
Fund Balances
Beginning 491.444 {561,035)
Ending 987,729 491,444
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Capital Equipment Replacement Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2010
{With Comparative Actual for the Year Ended April 30, 2009}

Variance
with Final
Budget
Original Final Over 2009
Budget Budget Actual {Under) Actual
Revenues
interest $ 10,000 10,000 42,253 32,253 64,249
Miscellaneous 838 838 32,300
Total Revenues 10,000 10,000 43 091 33,091 96,549
Expenditures
Current
Capital Outlay 246,975 246,975 235,764 (11,2113 90,685
Excess {Deficiency} of Revenues
over Expenditures {236,975) {236,975} (192,673} 44,302 5,864
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 165,125 165,125 165,125
Transfers Out (22,400} (22,4000
Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) 165,125 165,125 142,725 (22,400 -
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (71,850} (71,850) {49,948) 21,902 5,864
Fund Balances
Beginning 1,443,011 1,442,147
Ending 1,398,063 1,448,011
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PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE



ENTERPRISE FUND

Waterworks and Sewerage Fund (Major Fund) is used to account for the provision of water services,
sewer repair, and improvement services to the residents of the Village of River Forest. All
activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this Fund, including, but not
limited to, administration, operations, maintenanece, financing and related debt service and billing
collection.



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Waterworks and Sewerage Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2010

(With Comparative Actual for the Year Ended April 30. 2009}

Operating Revenues
Charges for Services
Water Sales
Scwer Charges
Sales of Meters
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenscs, Excluding Depreciation
Personal Services
Contractual Services
Commodities
Capital Qutlay
Total Operating Expenses. Excluding
Depreciation

Operating Income (1L.os3) Before Depreciation
Depreciation
Operating Income {Lass)
Nongperating Revenues (Expenscs)
[nvesiment Income {Loss)
Interest Expense
Loss on Disposal of Capital Asscts
Total Nonoperating Revenues
{Expenses)

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets
Beginning

Ending

Variance
with Final
Budget
Criginal Final Cver 2009
Budget Budgct Actual {(Under} Actual
§ 2339115 2.339.115 1,983,419 (355,696) 2,013,596
261,044 261,044 228,151 (32,893) 229,002
9,693 9.693 5,142 (4.551) 8,143
2,609,852 2.609.852 2,216,712 {393,140} 2,251,741
735,385 735,385 697,068 {38,317 693,363
339609 539.609 366,690 27,081 719.851
1,159,760 1,159,760 927,710 (232,050) 871,928
120,300 120,500 40.275 {80.225) 7.952
2.535.254 2.555.254 2.231.743 (323511} 2.295.088
54,598 34,568 {15.031) {69,629} (43.347)
165,130 165,130 151,595 {13.335) 155,267
{110.532) {110.332) (166.626) {56.094} {198.614)
20,000 20.000 17,461 (2.339 {7.642)
(44.757) 44.737) (44,757
(21.4906) {21.496)
(24.7537) (24,7573 (48.792) {24.0335) {7.642)
S (13528%) (135.289) (215.418) {80.129) {2046,256)
5.988.039 6,194,295
3.772.621 5.988,039



FIDUCIARY FUND TYPE



TRUST FUNDS

Police Pension Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources to pay pension costs,
Resources are contributed by police force members at rates fixed by state statutes and the Village
through an annual property tax levy.

Firefighters” Pension Fund is used to account for the accumuliation of resources to pay pension costs.
Resources are contributed by fire personnel members at rates fixed by state statutes and by the
Village through an annual property tax levy.



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Police Pension Trust Fund
Schedule of Changes in Net Assets - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2010

(With Comparative Actual for the Year Ended April 30, 2009}

Additions
Contributions
Participant Contributions
Emplover Contributions

Investment Income {L.oss}
Net Appreciation (Depreciation)
in Fair Value of Investments
Interest and Dividends

Total Additions
Deductions
Benefits
Refund of Contributions
Administrative Expense

Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets
Beginning

Ending

82

Variance
with Final
Budget
Final Over 2009
Budget Actual {Under) Actoal
$ 244,709 217,320 (27,38%) 296,559
931,173 1,046,020 117,847 260,202
1,175,882 1,266,340 90,458 1,256,761
2,114,576 2,114,576 {2,793,056)
150,000 393,864 243 864 484,119
150,000 2,508,440 2,358,440 {2,308.937)
1,325,882 3,774,780 2,448,898 {1,052.176)
1405016 1,438,598 33,582 1,365,210
51,241 51,241 172,866
28,548 53,350 21,802 (151,249}
1,433,564 1,540,185 106,625 1,386,827
$ 107,682} 2,234,591 2342273 {2,439,0603)
15,032,713 17,471,716
17,267,304 15,032,713



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund
Schedule of Changes in Net Assets - Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2010

{With Comparative Actual for the Year Ended April 30, 2009}

Additions
Contributions
Participant Contributions
Employer Coniributions

Investment Income {Loss)
Net Appreciation (Depreciation)
in Fair Value of investments
Interest and Dividends

Total Additions
Deductions
Benefits
Refund of Contributions
Administrative Expense

Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets
Beginning

Ending

Variance
with Final
Budget
Final Over 2009
Budget Actual {Under) Actual
5 170,863 165,352 {5,511} 161,874
554,737 662,303 107,566 441,516
725,600 827,655 102,055 603,390
1,462,955 1,462,955 (2,375,308)
50,256 227.592 177,342 513,919
50,250 1,690,547 1,640,297 (1,861,389)
775,850 2,518,202 1,742,352 {1.257,99%)
1,022,951 1,024,849 1,898 1,010,093
17,919 17,919 2,149
60,080 58,314 {1,766} 55,403
1,083,031 1,161,082 18,051 1,667,645
5 (307.181) 1,417,120 1,724,301 (2,325,644}
11,166,403 13,492,047
12,583,523 11,166,403



CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE
OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Capital Assets Used in the Operations of Governmental Funds

Schedule of Capital Assets by Source
April 30,2010

Governmental Funds Capital Assets

Land $ 584,445
Right of Ways 3,826,453
Construction in Progress 309,035
Buildings 4,410,365
Vehicles and Equipment 2,684,538
Infrastruciure 12,009,487

Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets $ 23.824,323

Investments in Governmental Funds Capital Assets by Source

From Current Revenues $ 16,775,043
Debt Issuances 7.049 278

Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets $ 23,824,323
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Capital Assets Used in the Operations of Governmental Fands

Schedule by Function and Activity
April 30, 2010

Land

Right of Ways
Construction in Progress
Buildings

Vehicles and Equipment

Infrastructure

Highway
General Public and
Government Safety Streets Total

$ 584,445 584,445
3,826,453 3,826,453
126,675 182 360 309,035
4,257,865 152,500 4,410,365
117,728 1,700,106 866,704 2,684,538
12,009,487 12,009,487
5 5.086,713 1,882,466 16,855,144 23,824,323
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Capital Assets Used in the Operations of Governmental Funds

Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity
Year Ended April 30, 2010

May I, April 30,
2009 Additions Deletions 2010
General Government § 4,919,380 167,333 5,086,713
Public Safety 1,573,627 352,457 43 618 1,882,466
Highways and Streets 16,715,876 257,452 118,184 16,855,144
$ 23,208,883 777,242 161,802 23,824,323
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COMPONENT UNIT - PUBLIC LIBRARY

The Public Library Funds are used to account for the resonrces necessary to provide the educational,
cultural and recreational activities of the River Forest Public Library.



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Component Unit - Public Library

Statement of Net Assets and Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

April 30, 2010

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Taxes
Qther
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated
Depreciation

Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroli
Unearned Revenue
Compensated Absences

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances/Net Assets
Fund Balance

Unreserved - Undesignated

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Net Assets
[nvestment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.

Statement of

Balance Sheet Net Assets
Library Total
Library Improvement Componcnt
Fund Fund Adjustments Unit
3 550,207 242,424 792,631
717,200 717,200
484,044 484,044
11,881 3,120 15,001
129,895 129,895
2,712,284 2,712,284
1,763,332 245,544 2,842,179 4,851,055
21,030 7,794 28,824
4,456 4,456
488,119 488,119
6,251 6,251
513,605 7,794 6,251 527,650
1,245,727 237,750 2,835,928 4,323,405
§ 1,763,332 245,544
2,842,179 2,842,179
1,481,226 1,481,226
4,323,405 4,323,405
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VILL.AGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Component Unit - Public Library

Statement of Activities and Governmental Fund Revenues,
Expenditores, and Changes in Fund Balance

Year Ended April 30, 2010

Revenues
Property Taxes
Fines and Forfeits
Interest
Grants
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues
Expenditvres/Expenses
Personal Services
Contractual
Commodities
Capital
Depreciation

Total Expenditures/Expenses

Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues over
Expenditures/Changes in Net Assets

Fund Balances/INet Assets
Beginning of Year

End of Year

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.

Schedule of Revenues,
Expenditures and

Statement of

Changes in Fund Balances Activities

Library Total

Library Improvement Component
Fund Fund Adjustroents Unit

$ 1,079,207 1,079,207

20,520 20,520

7,065 597 7,662

16,422 16,422

27.537 27,537

1,150,751 597 - 1,151,348

611,596 {169} 611,427

197,315 58,284 253,603

137,615 {116,743) 20,850

20,791 20,791

277,017 277.017

967,321 58,284 160,083 1,185,688

183,430 (57.687) {160,083} (34,340)

1,066,287 295,437 2.996,011 4,357,745

$ 1,249,727 237,750 2,835,928 4,323,405
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SUPPLEMENTAL DATA



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOiIS
Long-Term Debt Requirements

General Obligation {Limited Tax) Bonds, Series 2005

April 30, 2010

Date of Issue June 1, 2005

Date of Maturity December 1, 2017

Authorized Issue $ 490,000

interest Rate 3.5%-4.15%

Interest Dates June 1 and December 1

Payable at Amalgamated Bank of Chicago

Purpose Library Improvements

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQGUIREMENTS

Tax
Levy Requirements Interest Due On
Year Principal Interest Totals June 1 Amount Dec. 1 Amount
2005 3 40,000 14,433 54,433 2010 7217 2010 7,217
2010 40,000 12,913 52,913 2011 6,457 2011 6,457
2011 40,000 11,353 51,353 2012 5,677 2012 5,677
2012 45,000 9,753 54,753 2013 4,877 2013 4,877
2013 45,000 7,885 52,885 2014 3,943 2014 3,943
2014 45,000 6,018 51,018 2015 3,009 2015 3,009
2615 50,000 4,150 54,150 2016 2075 2016 2,075
2016 50,000 2,076 52,076 2017 1036 2017 1,035

5 355,000 68,581 423,581 34,291 34,250
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Long-Term Debt Reguirements

General Obligation {Limited Tax) Bonds, Series 2008A

April 30, 2010

Date of Issue
Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue
Interest Rate

December 15, 2008
December 1, 2015
$ 1,035,000

2.00% - 3.60%

[nterest Dates June ! and December !

Payable at Deutsche Bank National Trust Company

Purpose Street Improvements

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS
Tax
Levy Requirements interest Due On
Year Principal Interest Totals June 1 Amount Dec. | Amount
2009 $ 140,000 26,353 166,353 2010 13,176 2010 13,176
2010 145,000 23,203 168,203 2011 11,691 2011 11,601
2011 150,000 19,578 169,578 2012 9,789 2012 9,789
2012 150,000 15,453 165,453 2013 7,726 2013 7,726
2013 155,000 10,953 165,953 2014 5,476 2014 5,476
2014 168,660 5,760 165,760 2015 2,880 2015 2,880
$ 900,000 101,298 1,001,298 50,649 50,649
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, fLLINOIS

Long-Term Debt Requirements

General Obligation {Water & Sewer ARS) Bonds, Series 2008B

April 30, 2010

Date of Tssue
Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue
Interest Rate
Interest Dates

December 15, 2008
Decamber |, 2018

$ 1,355,000

2.75% - 4.10%

June | and December 1

Payable at Deutsche Bank National Trust Company
Purpose Water Meter Replacements
CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS
Tax
Levy Reguirements Interest Due Cn
Year Principal interest Totals June } Amount Dec. 1 Amonnt
2009 5 135,000 46,568 181,568 2010 23,284 2010 23,284
2010 135,000 42,855 177,855 2011 21,428 2011 21,428
2611 140,000 38,805 178,805 2012 19,403 2012 19,403
2012 145,000 34,605 179,605 2013 17,303 2013 17,303
2013 150,000 30,255 180,255 2014 15,128 2014 15,128
2014 155,600 25,230 180,230 2015 12,615 2015 12,615
2015 160,000 19,650 179,650 2016 9,825 2016 9,825
2016 165,000 13,570 178,57C 2017 6,785 2017 6,783
2017 170,000 6,970 176,970 2018 3,483 2018 3,483
5 1,355,000 258,508 1,613,508 129,254 129,254
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Statistical Section

This portion of the Village of River Forest Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosares, and required
supplementary information savs about the Village’s overall economic condition.

Contents Page
Financial Trends

These schedules contain information to help the reader understand how the Village’s 92-99
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Village's most 100-107
significant local revenue sources, the sales tax and the property tax.

Dbt Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the affordability of the 108-112

Village's current levels of outstanding debt and the Village's ability to issue additional
debt.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 113-118
understand the environment within which the Village's financial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand 119-123
how the information in the Village’s financial report relates to the services the Viilage
provides and the activities it performs.

Sources:

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Village's Comprehensive Annunal
Financial Reports for the relevant vear. The Village implemented GASB Statement 34 in Fiscal Year 2004,
schedules presenting government-wide information include information beginning in that year.



FINANCIAL TRENDS



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Net Assets by Component

Last Seven Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2009/10 2008/09 2007/08
Governmental Activitics
fnvested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debi $ 16,505,843 12,863,360 9.177.914
Restricted 7,404,892 10,007,290 10,694,552
Unrestricted 4,984 369 3.841.809 3,996,317
Total Governmental Activities Net Asscts 28,895,104 26,712,399 23,868,783
Business-type Activities
invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt S 4,781,583 4,182,910 3,244,490
Unrestricted 591,038 1,805,129 949 805
Total Business-type Activitics Net Assets 5,772,621 3,988,039 6,194,295
Primary Govermmment
Invested in Capital Asscts, Net of Related Debt 21,287,426 17.046,210 14,422 404
Restricted 7,404,892 10,007,290 11,255 587
Unrestricted 5,975,407 5,646,938 4,385,087
Total Primary Government Net Assets 5 34667725 32,700,438 30.063.078

Notes:

The Village first implemented GASB Statement No. 34 for {iscal year ended April 30, 2004,

The information provided is oaly for the Village, the primary government.



2006/07 2005/06 2004/05 2003/04
6,062,431 3,713,347 2,044,122 458,493
9,836,089 8.653,039 7,390,521 5.503,078
4,185,890 3,336,057 3,531,954 2,959,064

20,087 410 15,704,643 12,966,597 8,920,635
5.114.546 5.2635,902 5,328,802 5,386,507

953,021 1,002,839 691,650 890,911
6,067,967 6.268.741 6,020,452 6,277,418

11,177,377 8,981,449 7.372,924 5,845,000
9,836,089 8,653,039 7,390,521 5.503,078
5,141,811 4.338.896 4,223 604 3.849,975

26.155.377 21.973,384 18.987.049 15,198,053




VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINGIS
Changes in Net Assets

Last Seven Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2005/10 2608/05 200708

Gaovernmental Activities

Governmental Activity Expenses

General Government 9§ 7,174,166 § 3,632,138 3478872
Public Safety 7667352 7,427,770 6,408,588
Highways and Streets 1,716,012 2,421,383 2,267,099
Sanitation 826,640 887,122 863,132
Interest 122 883 190,336 363,003

Total Governmental Aclivities Expenscs 17.507.053 14,558,749 13,380,694

Governmental Activity Revenues
Governmental Activities
Charges for Services

General Govermment 1,177,211 1621630 939,161
Public Safety 451,285 439,907 377,821
Sanitation 833,344 382,390 516,892
Cperating Grants and Contributions 366,036 359,941 449 488
Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues 2,847,876 2 444 068 2,283,362
Net Activity Expense of Governmental Activities {14.659,177) (12.114,681) {11,097 ,332)
(General Revenues
Properly Taxes 11,076,844 9,439,952 8,816,793
Utility Taxes §21,328 713,256 742,549
Transfer Taxcs 69.967 68.327 108,057
Intergovernmental Taxes
Sales Taxes 4,707,772 781,536 915,419
ncome Taxes 897,371 1,024,643 1,096,207
(nher Intergovernmental Taxes 1,378,356 2,758,474 2,386,284
Miscellaneous 458,89 114,817 305,059
Interest 631,248 57.292 508,337
Tolal General Revenues 16,841,882 14,958,297 14.878.705
Change in Governinental Net Assets 2,182.705 2.843.616 3.781,373

Business Type Activities

Water and Sewerage Services

Expenses 2,449,391 2,450,355 2,186,752

Charges for Services 2.216,712 2,251,741 2252572

General Revenues - Miscellaneous and Interest 17.461 {7.642) 60,508
Change in Business Type Net Assets {215.418) {206,236} 126,328
Change in Net Asscts, Total Primary Govermment $ 1967287 2,637.360 3,907,701
Notes:

¥ The Village first implemented GASE Stalement No. 34 for fiscal yvear ended April 30, 2004,

" The information provided is only for the Village, the primary government.

¢t in fiscal year 2010, the Village declared over $3 million in tex increment finance (TIF) district revenucs as surplus and retwrned it to the
County for redistribution to all faxing entities that service the TIF area.

34



2006/07 2005/06 2004405 200304

3,036,053 3,270,881 2,588,770 2,272,357
6,847,105 6.3%6,197 5,147,938 5,894,662
1,799,057 2,507,837 1,835,524 2,188,977
829,980 807,367 798,923 791,685
435.252 484,207 461 416 873.165
12,947,447 13,456,489 10,832,571 12.020.846
1,207.179 1,156,228 739.002 1.480,592
364,070 405,737 299,046 174,119
449,460 414,393 465,373
379.760 548,880 389,187 337,355
2,400,469 2.525238 1,892,608 1,952.066

{10,546,978) (10.931,251) (8,939.963) {10.028,780)

7.218.426 6.251.108 6,307,172 4.976.432
678,300 766,429 660,703 687.139
113,644 158,615 137,095 119,383
785,642 768,565 752,962 957,777

1.003.524 99,983 810,737 701.875

4,160,125 2,002,767 3,767,350 3.535.087
440,261 508,187 428,407 380,004
529,823 313.641 121,499 67,235

14,529,743 13,669,297 12,985,925 11,424.932

4.382.767 2,738.046 4.045.962 1.396.152

2.279.839 2.144.776 2.002.737 2,709,061

2,034.765 2,171,446 1.744.945 1,745,577

44,300 221.619 20,826 19,011
{200.774) 248,289 (256.566) (944.473)
4,181,993 2.986.335 3.788.996 431,679




VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years, Ending Aprjl 30th

Fiscal Year 200%/10 2008/09 2007/08 2006/07

General Fund

Reserved
Reserved for prepaid items $ 123,599 142,366 106,039 10,614
Reserved for working cash 535,032 535,032 535,032 535,032
Reserved for beautification 2,887 17,574
Reserved for builder escrows 20,544 20,544 11,180 15,420
Reserved for IRMA deposits 693,356 522815 841,145 1,118,747
Reserved for liability insurance 26,930
Unreserved
Designated for future projects
Designated for parking 363,695 363,695 315,335 264,288
Designated for band shell 36,237 36,237 34,393 32,652
Undesignated 2,902,852 645,676 1,485,953 1,794,109
Total General Fund 4,675,315 2,266,365 3,332,176 3,815,366

All Other Governmental Funds

Reserved
Reserved for prepaid items 5,032 2,896 3,506
Reserved for infrastructure improvements 5,639,679
Reserved for bond payments 9,648,052 11,054,039 9,386,971
Unreserved
Special Revenue 670,455 361,716 133,188 302,781
Debt Service 338,894 548,536 68,360 83,062
Capital Projects 1,398.063 1,936,559 §77,606 1,276,423
Total All Other Governmental Funds 8,072,123 12,497,750 12,136,699 11,051,237
Total Governmental Funds $12,747 438 14,764,124 15,468,875 14,866,603

Governmental Fund Balances
Over {Under) Prior Year $(2,016,686) {704,751} 602,272 2,163,971

(a)

Notes:
a) The Village decided to declare a surplus of tax incremental finance {TIF} area revenucs and returned about $3 million to
the County for redistribution to all faxing entities that serve the TIF area.

As the TIF is brought to a close, the governmental fund balances for the TIF Funds will be reduced to zero, resulting in a

reduction in total governmental fund balance. See the schedule of changes in net assets, particulacly the increases in
governmental net assets net of related debt, to appreciate some of the Village's TIF arca improvements.
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2005/06 2004/05 2003/04 2002/03 2001/02 2000/01
8,315 72,912 71,581 51,062 67,086 2,212
545,565 535,032 535,032 535,032 535,032
17,030 16,431
38,698
1,129,393
183,345
214,074 164,905
31,916 37,868
2,064,602 2,600,960 2,988,796 2,561,484 3,186,731 2,564,288
4,049,593 3,428,108 3,778,754 3,147,578 3,788,849 2,566,500
4,134 4,879 2,732 127,671 165,000
21,003 10,000
6,694,955 4,376,668 2,059,513 2,022,426 1,809,216 2,120,991
449,222 536,490 470,643 376,780 583,373 660,981
94,036 62,314
1,414,826 2,410,915 2,968,043 2,092,983 2,536,474 2,274,028
8,653,039 7,390,521 5,503,078 4,494,921 5,077,737 5,231,000
12,702,632 10,818,629 9,281 832 7,642,499 8.866.586 7,797,500
1,884.003 1,536,797 1.639.333 (1,224.087) 1,069,086 (4,949,938)
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Ycar 200910 2008/09 200708 2006/07 200506
Reventes
Loecal Taxes
Property Taxes a) $ 11,076,944 9.439.952 8.816,793 9.007.592 10,311,739
Utility Taxes 621,328 713.256 742,549 678.300
Transfer Taxes 69.967 68,327 108.057 113,644
Licenses and Permits 817869 729 008 691,047 936,322 057.315
Intersrovernmental 3.983.499 4.564.633 4,722,733 3.314.357 2.871.181
Cirants 366.036 399,941 124.665 25.528 213,429
Charges for Services 1,408,020 1.086.744 966,788 885357 822,702
Fincs and forfeits 233951 228,375 176,039 179.030 196341
Intersst 284278 37.292 508.337 329,823 313,641
Miscellaneous 798.479 114817 53.059 440261 308,187
Total Revenues 19.682.371 17.402.365 16912067 17.330.214 16,194,335
Expenditures
Current
General Government 7.034.632 3.628.804 3.072.042 2914728 2,715,357
Public Safety 7425037 7.0058.708 6,726,613 6.541.156 5.979.573
Hlighways and Streets 1.461.988 2.183.774 20359328 2,023.379 1,790,461
Sanitation 826.640 887.122 R63.132 829,980 B07.367
Miscellancous 31.207
Dbt Service
Principal Payments 3.140.000 4,575,000 2.070,060 1,880,000 1.740,0600
Interest and Fees 173.774 253.258 362,952 465,303 499,198
Capital Qutlay 661.676 522,243 1,375.728 511,495 769.574
20.723.747 19.142.116 16,559.795 15,166,243 14,310,532
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
over [xpenditures {1L.041.376} (1.739.751) 352272 2.163.971 1,884,003
Other Financing Sources {1fses)
Band Proceeds 1.033.000
Transter to Bond Escrow
Other Employment Benefit
Transter from component unil
Sate of Capital Assets 7.387 250,000
Frior Period Adjusunent
Transfers In 4.0)53.662 3.615.216 2.731.189 1.784 315 1.200.963
Transfers Out {4.053.662}) {3.613.216) (2,731.189) {1.784.315) {1.200.965)
7.387 1,033,000 250,000 - -
Net Change in Fund Balance $ {1.033.989) {704.751) 602272 2.163,971 1.884.003
Dbt Service as a Percentage of
Non-capital Expenditures 16.6% 25.9% 16.2% 16.0% 16.5%

Note:

a} In fiscal year 2010 the Village received a surplus distribution of property taxes from the TIF area.
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20044035 200304 2002403 2001/02 2000701
9.996.914 8,341,212 8.373,035 6.912,05% 6.793.256
567.415 732,395 683,072 616,498 497220
2,779,276 2767438 2,107,146 350010 3119985
719157 T48. 197 866,944 773870 #23.501
168.644 164.148 157.048 156.839 137.262
128.715 73.633 166.048 245744 473,155
428,407 389.975 330,712 110.319 225286
14.878.533 13416998 12.684.005 12.315.433 12.071.663

2.620.327 2.270.684 2.791.077 2.485.630 1.714.813

5,694,192 5,307.693 5.561.038 5.231.647 4.402.301

1,776.739 1.852.784 2.087.880 1.701.753 2,086,924

798.923 791.685 786,002 794,734 745.388

167.350 153,685

1.630.000 870.000 900,080 795,000 603,000

563.276 720,244 781.120 831,776 953,198

258.279 172,195 1.282.370 832.041 1.700.614

13.341.736 11,985.285 14.189.567 12.859.931 12.361.923
1.536.797 1.431.713 (1.505.562) {544.498) {290.25%)

4,550,000
(4.347.380)
314,000
2,700 2,600
(28.525)

1.085.499 2212454 1.915.329 4.510.834 2.234.585
(1.085.499) (2.212.454) {1.915.529) (2.899.950) {2.216.457)

- 207,620 241,475 1.613.584 20.728
1,536,797 1,639,333 (1.224.087) 1.069.086 (269.530)
16.8% 13.5% 13.0% 13.5% 14.6%
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YILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Assessed Value of Taxable Property

J.ast Ten Levy Years

Residential Commereial industrial
% of % of % of

Tax Total Total Total Total Village
Levy Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed Property
Ycar Amounl Value Amount Value Amount Value Value Tax Rate
2009 g
2008 231,060,928 91.5% 21,234,090 8.4% 254,274 0.1% 252,549,292 0.880
2007
2006
2005
2004 134,086,044 86.6% 20,660,993 13.3% 112,334 0.1% 154,859.971 1.141
2003
2002
2001 99,416,282 85.4% 16,883,378 14.5% 103,229 0.1% 116,402,889 1.130
2000

Notes:

The Cook County Assessor usually provides the annual cqualized assessed value by September/October of year following the levy
vear. As of mid-October 2010, the information for the 2009 levy year is nol yet available,

Property in the Village is reassessed by the County every three to four vears.

Refer to the Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments schedule for additional property tax rate information.

Data Source

Cook County Clerk's Otfice - www.cookeountyelerk.com/sditaxagencyreports
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments
(Per $100 Asscssed Valuation)

Last Ten Levy Years

Tax Levy Year 2009 (1) 2008 2007 2006 2005
Calendar Year Collected 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
School Districts NA 5.843 6.234 6.061 5.562
Village of River Forest NA 0.880 G.965 0.979 0.947
Cook County NA 0.415 0.446 0.500 0.593
Park District NA 0.317 0.357 0.363 0.354
Water Reclamation NA 0.252 0.263 0.284 0.315
Public Library - Village component unit NA 0.161 0.176 0.179 0.173
Township NA 0.084 0.093 0.093 0.093
Other (2) NA 0.063 0.077 0.074 0.030

- 8.015 8.611 8535 8.067
Notes:

(1} NA - Information is not available from the County. The first tax installment for the 2009 levy was received in spring of
2010, It was an estimate, based on half of the prior year's tax levy. The County will complete the calculation of the 2009 levy
rates in the late fall of 2010.

{2) "Other" includes Consolidated Elections, Cook County Farest Preserve, and Des Plaines Valley Mosquito Abatement District.

Calendar Year 2009 Tax Rates for
Direct and Overlapping Governments
Serving Village of River Forest

Public Library -
Village component
unit

Other
Water Reclamation

Park District
Cook County

Village of River
Forest

Data Source

Cook County Clerk's Office
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2004 2003 2002 2601 2006
2003 2004 2003 2002 2001
6.028 5910 5612 7.816 7.217
1.101 1.116 1.042 1.150 1.527
0.593 0.630 0.6%0 0.545 0.605
0418 0.426 0.386 0.5357 0.400
(3.347 0.361 06.371 0.401 0.415
0.204 0.206 0.199 0.030 0.262
0.10% 0.111 0.115 0.171 0.184
0.073 0.113 0.079 0.320 0.309
§.873 8.873 £.494 10.998 16.919
Calendar Years 2000 - 2009
Total Direct & Cverlapping Property Tax Rate
1.5
11.0
10.5
10.0
2
w 95
2.4
9.0
35
8.0
75

1999

2000

2001

2002 2003 2004

2005

2006

2007

2008
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Tax Levy Years

Equalized Percent of
Tax Levy Calendar Year Assessed Tax Levy Tax Levy Tax Coilections
Year Collected Valuation (EAV) Extension Collections To Tax Extension
1

2000 2010 n/a n/a 2,889,746 n/a

2008 2009 $521,353.450 5,249,082 5,063,036 96.44%
2007 2008 515,665,926 4,976,176 4,937,644 99.2%;
2006 2007 461,723,633 4,813,901 4,750,482 98.7%
2003 2006 488,961 811 4,635,295 4,587,588 99.0%
2004 2003 398,872,827 4,395,485 4,372,710 99.5%
2003 2004 383,075,511 4,275,123 4,238,715 99.1%
2002 2003 386,147,191 4,023,655 3,986,236 99.1%
2001 2002 258,821,980 4,013,079 3,988,218 99.4%
2000 2001 255,122,701 3,895,716 3,877,092 99.5%
[9G9 2000 259 430,000 3,831,773 3,837,281 100.1%
1598 1959 229,757,601 4,064,404 4,036,839 99.3%

! Property in the Village is reassessed every three years. Changes per year are a reflection of new building.

* This tax levy is still in collection. The balance of the 2009 tax levy will be distributed to the Village in the fall of 2010. The
amount shown as collected reflects a half-ycar estimate, distributed by the County in the spring of 2010.

* The amounts included in this schedule are taxes levied for the funding of corporate purposes, debt service, fire pension and
police pension. They exclude the amounts Jevied for the Village's component unit, the Library, and the incremental tax funding
for the TIF Arca. However, in December 2009, the Village declarcd surplus in the TIF Fund and returned tax increment to the
County. The County, in turn, distributed the tax increment and the Village received an additional $229,735, which is included in
the 2010 tax receipts for the 2009 tax levy year. Another surplus distribution is expected at the beginning of calendar year 2011.
The TIF Areua will be closed and there wilt be a one-time leap in the EAV for Village property as the TIF improvements are
recognized as new building.
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Taxable Saies by Category

I.asl Ten Calendar Years

Calendar year: 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Food § 85966,358 94,027,986 93,555,481 86,715,425 84,792,711
Drinking and Eating Places 9,077,434 9,349,870 8,853,913 7,481,459 7.011,174
Apparel 6,539,962 9,416,078 13,384,301 13,776,636 14,196,500
Furniture, Household and Radio 3.457,753 5,790,508 3,835,259 6,172,732 8,229,027
Lumber, Building and Hardwarc 2,632,304 2,846,965 3,206,414 3,172,050
Automotive Filling Stations 4,926,783 6,257,395 6,535,949 5,249,514 5,348,529
Drugs and Other Retai) 40,523,397 41,624,866 39,400,174 34,684,001 31,882,391
Agriculture and Extractive 6,754,564 8,332,554 7.702.215 8,574,091 9,156,142
Manufacturers 1,194,018 1,392,253

General Merchandise/Manufactures 462,075

General Merchandise/Apparel

Total § 158.420.269 177.431.561 179.968.785 165,860,272 163.788.564

Village Statutory Allocated
Sales Tax Rate 1.G0% i.00% L0 1.00% 1.00%

Newes:

Sales tax information for the calendar year 2009 is the most current available,

The State of Ilinois mposes a sales tax on a seller's receipts rom sales of tangible property for nse or consumption. Tangible personal
property does not inclede real estate, stocks, bonds or other "paper” assets representing an interest. The categories listed above are
determined by the State of [llinois. The 1% tax is a revenue that the State shares with the Village.

Data Source
Ilinois Department of Revenue: www.revenue.state.il.us
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2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
82,053,407 81,959,198 77,959,029 73,586,655 72,478,554
6,964,142 6,748,384 4.609,170 7.181,129 7,307,920
1,361,141 7.469.411 3,270,267 1,549,655
6,349,300 13,359,105 9,700,652 5,086,166 5,497,130
2.699.072 2,670,297 2,567,713 3,036,963 7.335,083
4,928,299 5,253,257 5,941,446 4 468,952 4,286,468
31,506,483 3,011,028 28,245,653 29.023.408 28.452,260
7,220,943 5,724,502 5417934 4,121,057 3,637,824
923,061
143.112.787 125,192,182 137.711.886 128.053.985 129,918,300
1.04% 1.00% wa n/a nfa




VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Municipal Retailers' Geecupation and Use Tax Receipts

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Nore. Includes Village sales tax receipts allocated to the Pledged Taxes Fund.

State

Fiscal Sales Tax Annual Change

Year Bistributions Amount Percentage
2010 ¥ 1,724,944 ¥ (155,618) -8.28%
2009 1,880,562 {110,995) -3.57%
2008 1,991,557 137,783 7.43%
2007 1,833,773 65,133 3.64%
2006 1,788,640 72,414 4.22%
2005 1,716,227 (66.850) -3.75%
2004 1,783,076 255,813 16.73%
2003 1,527,263 (166,428) -9.83%
2002 1,693,691 (60,376} -3.44%
2001 1,754,067 66,028 3.91%

2,500,000

2,000,000

1,500,000

1,660,000

500,000

11-Fiscal Year Trend of Municipal Retailers’ Occupation and Use Tax Disiributions
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Top Ten Principal Property Taxpayers

2008 Levy Year and Nine Years Ago

2008 Levy Year (1)

1999 Levy Year

Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
Equalized Equalized Equalized Equalized
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Valuation Valuation Valuation
Taxman Corp., The ? Retail Center $ 15372986 2.6% Yo
River Forest Town Center One 2 Retail Center 9,507,835 3.7%
River Forest Town Center Two Retaii Center 8,502,801 {.4%
Resurrection Health Co. 3 Medical Center 8,418,878 1.4%
West Suburban Hospital 3 Medical Center 3,335,156 1.3%
Albertson's {Jewel) * Rectail Center 6,887,482 1.2%
America stores (Jewel) * Retail 4,398,796 1.7%
Jack Strand Retail Center 1,811,975 0.3%
Kirk Eye Center Vision Center 1,540,627 0.3% 1,315,538 0.5%
Thomson Tax and Accounting Retail Store 1,484,326 0.2%
Chicago Land & Trust Land title firm 1,197,951 0.2%
Private Bank, The Bank 1,026,006 0.2%
River Forest Tennis Club Recreation 1,002,272 0.2% 683,367 3.3%
Edward Hines Lumber Retail Store 879,652 0.1% 653,071 0.3%
Keystone Montessori School 928,738 0.4%
Dowling Propetties Property management 916,227 G.4%
First City Mortgage Mortgage 862,853 0.3%
Plunkett Furniture Retail 836,848 0.3%
CPTS 3062 - Dominicks Grocery Storc 806,094 0.3%
Totals S 48,124,956 8.1% 24,244,524 935 %
S 596,926,880 259,430,000

Total Village of River Forest equalized assessed value:

Notes:

' The State of Illinois establishes a lien on property for the levy at the beginning of the calendar year. The taxing entities adopt
their levies at the end of December of the same calendar year. The taxes levies are for collections in the foliowing calendar year.
Therefore, the Village's fiscal year 2009/2010 relied on the property collections in the fall of 2009, which are from the 2008 tax
levy year, as well as the distribution provided in the spring of 2010 which was an estimate based on the prior year's tax levy.

23

Data Source

Office of County Clerk

Thesc are the same properties with different owners.
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Cutstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Business- Total
Governmental Type Total Cutstanding

Activities Activities Outstanding Debt as a Total
General General Debt of Percentage of QOutstanding

Fiscal Obligation Obiligation Primary Personal Debt
Year Bonds Bonds Government Income per Capita*
2010 $ 1,255,000 1,355,000 2,610,060 0.5% 224
2009 4,395,000 1,355,000 5,750,000 1.0% 494
2008 7,935,000 7,935,000 £.4% 682
2067 10,005,000 19,005,060 1.8% 860
2006 11,885,000 11,885,000 2.1% 1,021
2005 13,135,060 13,135,000 2.3% 1,129
2004 14,765,000 14,765,000 2.6% 1,269
2003 15,335,000 15,335,000 2.7% 1,318
2002 16,225,060 16,225,000 2.8% 1,394
2001 17,020,060 17,620,000 3.0% 1,463

Notes:

Details of the Village's cuistanding debt may be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

*Refer to the Schedule of Demegraphic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data.

Data Source

Village Records

LS. Department of Comunerce, Bureau of Census. 1990 and 2000 Census.
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt to Equalized Assessed Value
and Net General Obligation Bonded Debt Per Capita

Last Ten Fiscal Years {000's Omitted}

Tax Levy Year 2009 2008 2007
Population 11,635 11,635 11,635
Equalized Assessed Value - EAV 2 $641,332,879 596,926,880 515,665,026

General Obligation Debt

Gross General Obligation Bonded Debt 2610 5,750 7,935

Less: Debt Payable from Enterprise Revenues 1,355 1,355

Less: Debt Payable from TIF Revenues 2,865 7,370

Less: Fund Balance Available in Debt Service Fund 335 548 68
Net General Obligation Bonded Debt 3 916 882 497

Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded
Debt to Assessed Value 0.143% 0.148% 0.096%

Net General Obligation Bonded Debt
Per Capita 5 79 75.81 42.72

Data Source

{1} U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census
{2} Office of the County Clerk. This is the draft amount provided for levy year 2009 as of October 2010.
{3) Tax supported debt only, per Village Records
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2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

11,635 11,635 11,635 11,635 11,635 11,035 11,635

491,723,633 488,961,811 398,872,827 383,075,511 386,147,191 264,366,625 255,122,701

10,005 11,885 13,135 14,765 15,335 17,020 17,650
9,275 11,000 12,615 14,123 15,175 15,910 16,555
83 94 62
645 791 458 040 160 1,110 1,095
0.131% 0.162% 0.115% 0.167% 0.041% 0.420% 0.429%
55.44 67.98 3936 55.01 13.75 95.40 94.11
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINGIS

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2010

Net Gencral
Obligation Percentage Amount
Bonded Applicable Applicable
Debt to to
Jurisdiction Outstanding Village (1) Village
Direct Debt
Village of River Forest 2,610,000 100.00% 2,610,000
Overlapping Debt
Schools:
School District Number 90 5,270,000 100.00% 5,270,000
High School District Number 204 15,181,556 25.17% 3,821,198
Total Schools 20.451,556 3,091,198
Others:
Cook County 3,184,830,000 0.34% 10,828,422
Cook County Forest Preserve District 103,586,963 0.34% 352,196
Metropolitan Water Reclamation District 1,549,177 431 0.35% 6,822,121
River Forest Park District 578,060 100.00% 578,060
Total Others 5,238,172 454 18,580,799
Total Schools and Gthers
Overlapping Bonded Debt 5,258,624 010 27,671,996
Total $5.261.234.010 30,281,996
Note:

(1) Percentages arc based an the percent of the property's 2008 equalized assessed value as compared to the Village total.

Data Source

Cook County Clerk; http://cookcountygov.com
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Legal Debt Margin

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2010

Assessed Valuation - Tax Levy Year 2009, (draft*) $ 641332879
Legal Debt Limit - 8.625% of Assessed Valuation 55,314,961
Amount of Debt Applicable to Debt Limit 1,255,000
Legal Debt Margin $§ 540595861

Chapter 65, Section 5/8-5-1 of the lilinois Compiled Statutes provides, “...no municipality having a popuiation of less than
500,000 shall become indebted in any manner or for any purpose, to an amount, including existing indebtedness i the
aggregate exceeding 8.625% ou the value of the taxable property therein, to be ascertained by the last assessment for state
and county purposes, previous to the incurring of the indebtedness or, until January 1, 1983, if greater, the sum that is
produced by multiplying the municipality’s 1978 equalized assessed valuation by the debt limitation percentage in effect on
January 1, 19797

* Note -
The Office of the Cook County Clerk provided a drait of the Agency Tax Rate Report as of October, 2010. This is the
most current information available at this time.
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Demographic and Ecenoinic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

The following table shows the ten-year trend in population, personal income and per capita income for the Village, as well as
average annual unemployment rates for the Village and the State of [llinois.

Estimated
Total

Personal Per Capital Unemployment Rate
Fiscal [ncome of Personal Viliage of State of
Year Population (2} Population (1} Income (1) River Forest (2) Hlinois (3)
2010 11,635 $ 571,429,755 49,113 2.7% 10.3%
2009 11,635 571,429,755 49,113 2.7% 9.3%
2008 11,635 571,429,755 49,113 2.7% 6.5%
2007 11,635 571,429,755 49,113 2.7% 4.6%
2006 11,635 571,429,755 49,113 2.7% 4.6%
2005 11,635 571,429,755 49,113 2.7% 5.1%
2004 11,635 571,429,755 49,113 2.7% 5.5%
2003 11,633 571,429,755 49,113 2.7% 6.0%
2002 11,633 571,429,755 49,113 2.7% 5.8%
2001 11,635 571,429,755 49,113 2.7% 4.7%

Notes:

{1) The U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census defines personal income as a measure of income received from
all sources by residents of the Village during a calendar year.

{(2) Burcau of Census updates every ten years; however, the 2010 data has not been released as of the printing date.

Data Source

Bureau of Census
Hlinois Department of Employment Security



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Median Family Income

According to the 2000 U.S. Census, the Village had a median family income of $122,155, which is an increase of 54.84% over
the 1990 median family income of $78,889. This 2000 median family income compares with $53,784 for Cook County and
$55,545 for the State of Tllinois. The following table represents the distribution of family income for the Village, Cook County
and the State of Hlinois at the time of the 2000 U. S. Census.

Median Family* Income

The Village Cook County State of Illinois
Number of Percent of Number of Percent of Number of Percent of
Income Families Families Families Families Families Families

Less than $10,000 54 1.8% 86,610 6.8% 156,205 5.0%
$10,000t0% 14,599 46 1.6% 50,237 3.9% 105,747 3.4%
$ 15,000 to $ 24,999 86 2.9% 117,530 9.2% 273,712 8.8%
$25,000tc $ 34,999 131 4 4% 134,606 10.5% 331,607 10.6%
$ 35,000 to $ 49,999 236 8.0% 198,780 15.5% 506,429 16.2%
$ 50,000 to § 74,999 367 12.4% 277,726 21.7% 736,897 23.6%
3 75,600 t0 § 95,999 297 10.1% 174,228 15.6% 445 390 14.3%
$100.000 10 $149,569 494 16.8% 145,531 11.4% 356,068 11.4%
$150,000 10 $199,969 477 16.2% 42,759 3.3% 101,955 3.3%
$200,000 or more 760 25.8% 50,738 4.0% 111,008 3.6%

*The U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census defines a family as a group of two or more people {one of whom
is the householder) related by birth, marriage or adopticn and residing together. All such peeple (including related
subfamily members) are considered as members of one family.

Data Source

U.S. Depariment of Commerce, Bureau of Census
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Housing and Per Capita Personal Income

HOUSING

The 2000 U.S. Census reported that the median value of a Village owner-occupied home was $386,600. This 2000
median value for an owner-occupicd home compares with $157, 760 for Cook Counly and $130,800 for the State of
IHinois. The 2000 market values for specified owner-occupied units for the Village, Cook County and the State of

linois are as foliows:

Specified Owner-Occupied Units

The Village Cook County State of [llinois

Percent Number Percent Number Percent

Value of Units of Units of Units of Units of Units
Less than $50,000 0.0% 15,576 1.9% 230,049 9.3%
$50,600 to $59,999 0.0% 141,600 17.3% 651,605 26.4%
£100,000 to $149,999 5.9% 218,621 26.8% 583,409 23.5%
$£150,000 to $199,999 6.1% 184,050 22.5% 429,311 17.4%
£200,000 to $299,999 19.7% 147,478 18.1% 344,651 14.0%
$300,000 to $499,999 46.5% 74 446 9.1% 163,254 6.6%
$500,000 to $999,999 25.9% 28,249 3.5% 55,673 2.3%
$1,600,000 or more 1.2% 6,512 0.8% 12,386 (4.3%

INCOME

Cook County is ranked as the seventh highest county in the State of llinois for per capita personal income as shown

below:

Per Capita Personal income for the Ten Highest Income Counties in the State

Data Source

e R I R VA I N

—
[

Per Capita
County Personal Income
Lake County $32,102
DuPage County 31,315
McHenry County 26,476
Kendall County 25,188
Wili County 24,613
Kane County 24,315
Cook County 23,227
Sangamon Counly 23,173
Monroe County 22,954
Grundy County 22,591

U.S. Department of Cominerce, Burcau of Census, 2000 Census.
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Emplovment by Industry and Qccupation

The following tables show emplovmeint by industry and by occupation for the Village, Cook County and the State of Illinois, as reported by
the 2000 Census.

Employment by Industry

The Village Cook County State of Illinois
Number Percent Number Percent Nunber Percent
Classification® Emploved Emploved Emploved Employed Emploved Emploved
{1)  Agricuitare, forestry
and fisheries n/a n/a 2,336 0.1% 66,481 1.1%
(2) Construction na n'a 119,355 4.9% 334,176 5.7%
(3) Manufacturing na nfa 342,422 14.1% 931,162 16.0%
(4) Wholesale trade nfa nfa 92,706 3.8% 222,990 3.8%
(3) Retail trade n'a nfa 244,344 10.1% 643,472 11.0%
(6) Transportation, warchousing
and utilities nfa n'a 162,465 6.7% 352,193 6.0%
(7Y Information nfa na 82,835 3.4% 172,629 3.0%
(8) Finance, insurance, and
real esiale nfa nfa 219,831 9.1% 462,160 7.9%
{9y Other professional services nfa nfa 306,482 12.7% 350,913 10.1%
(107 Educational, health, and
social services na na 454,951 18.8% 1.131.987 19.4%
(11) Cntertainment, recreation
and tood services n/a nfa 179,592 7.4% 417 406 7.2%
{12y  Cther services n/a n/a 120,337 5.0% 275,901 4.7%
(13}  Public administration n/a nfa 93,611 3.9% 231.706 4.0%
Employment by Qccupation
The Village Cook County State of llinois
Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Clagsification® Emploved Employed Emploved Empiloved Emploved Lmployed
{1y  Management, professional
and related occupations 3,439 0.0% 832,442 35.2% 1,993,671 34.2%
(2)  Service occupations 421 0.0% 339,554 14.0% 813.479 13.9%
(3)  Sales and office occupations 1,483 0.0% 650,023 28.5% 1,609,939 27.6%
{4) Fanming, fishing and {orestry
occupations 13 0.0% 1,942 0.1% 17,862 0.3%
{5y Construction, extraction and
maintenance sccupalions 132 0.0% 171,534 7.1% 480,418 8.2%
{6) Production, transportation and
material moving occupations 272 0.0% 363,792 15.1% 617,816 15.7%

*Emplovment classitications are established by the U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census.

n/a - Information not avallahle,

Data Sourcc
U.S. Depariment of Commerce, Burcau of Census
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Principal Village Lmployers

Current Fiscal Year and Three Years Ago

Fiscal Year 200972010

Fiscal Year 2006/2007

Pereent Pereent
of Total of Total
Approxiniate Village Approximate Village

Employer (1) Product/Service Employment  Population Rank Employment Population
Dominican University Education 1 600 5.16% 2 450 3.87%
Concordia University Education 2 363 3.12% 1 733 6.47%
Albertsons (Jewel Grocery Store) Grocery Store 3 245 2.11% 3 330 3.01%
Clementary School Dist 90 Education 4 190 1.63% 4 192 1.65%
Whole Foods Grrocery Store 5 177 1.52% 5 170 1.46%
Resurrection Medical Center Health Care G 93 0.80% g 55 0.47%
Village of River Forest Govemment 7 73 0.64% 6 82 0.70%
Cook County Forest Preserve CGovernment 8 58 0.50% 7 70 0.60%
Dominick's Finer Foods Food Store 9 47 0.40% 9 49 0.42%
River Fotest Community Center Social Services 14 35 0.30% 10 32 0.28%
1,883 11.03% 2203 15.07%

Total Population. per 2000 census 11.635 11.635

Note . Estimated tigure includes all full-time and part-time employvees.

Inlormation regarding Principal Village Fmployers is not available prior 1o 2006

[ata Source

Village Records, emplover ingquiries
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, 1LLINOQIS

Construction Value of Building Permits and Property Value
Last Ten Fiscal Years

April 30, 2009
{1) Total
Number (2) Property
Fiscal of Permits Value of Value
Year Issued Building Permits (in Thousands}
2010 185 $ 10,734,585 nfa
2009 156 20,998,543 n/a
2008 131 15,479,689 nfa
2007 207 21,852,253 n/a
2006 251 45,330,157 n/a
2005 240 22,212,550 n/a
2004 255 25,910,221 n/a
2003 238 26,349,788 nfa
2002 n/a 43,129,963 nfa
2001 n/a 32,770,136 n'a

n/a - Information not available.

11 Year Trend - Building Permit Values

50,000,000 : _
45,000,000 |- I I
40,000,000 A : AT _
35,000,000 L N VAN
30,000,000 [rmerr e N AR

000, N T T N
25,000,000 | — - ~

20,000,000 — - - — -

10,000,000
5,000,000

2000 2001 2002 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Data Sources
{1} LaSalle Bank building survey FSB for year 1999 through 2002 and Viilage for 2003 and thereafter.

{2} McFadden American Financial Directories and cails to local banks - does not include Branch Banks, Credit Linions,
or Holding Companies.
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Full-Time Equivalent Employees

L.ast Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

General Government

Administration 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Finance 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Totai General Government 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 3] 6

Public Safety

Police
Sworn 28 31 31 31 31 31 31 1 3 31
Non-Sworn 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 S 9
Fire
Sworn 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 21 21 21
Total Public Safety 33 56 36 56 56 36 56 53 61 61
Highway and Streets
Public Works i7 19 19 24 20 19 19 19 19 19
Total Village 75 81 81 82 82 81 81 80 86 86

Eleven Year Trend
Number of Full-Time Eguivalent Employees

8o

85

&0

75

70

&5 -
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Fiscal Year

Data Seource

Village Records
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Operating Indicators

f.ast Ten Fiseal Years

Fiscal Year Ending April 30th

Function/Progrant 2010 2008 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Pushlic Safety
Police
Total arrests 638 694 587 723 630 Sla 378 701 772 776
Calls for service 12,917 13,643 10,146 11,846 16,490 13,943 13.873 13,542 15,440 16,056
Traffic tickets 2,864 2,948 2,495 3,106 2,963 1,959 3.088 4,153 4,621 3,800
Fire
Ambulance calls 868 832 838 853 843 788 811 813 343 849
Fire calls 932 992 973 892 856 842 §74 343 772 717
Firg investigations | 5 5 4 4

Public Works

Strects
Street Reconstrmction {In. ft.} 2,520 3,082 1,240 - 3470 4,201 2,743 7,283 6414
Streeting resurfacing {In. ft.) 7.209 4,909 2,540 5,965 856 2,008 8.325 3,697 1,303
Leaves collected (tons) 1,947 1,751 1.595 1,530 1.830 1,730 1,950 1,925 1,744 1,338
I‘ull salting operations {tons) 932 1,047 1,197 354 1,090 1185 974 1,009 393 1,351
Water/Sewer
Water main repairs 9 1 7 6 3 3 4 7 3 14
Average datly pumpage (mzd) 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Seswer mains cleaned (In. () 13,518 491,990 31,688 36,019 23921 32,644 21,141 39044 34.742 3,370

Village Records
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VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Capiial Asset Staustics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program

2010

2009

2008

2007 2006 2045 2004 2003 2002 2001
General Government
Village Hall 1 1 1 i 1 1 1 1 1 1
Pablic Safety
Police
Police Station 1 1 1 ] 1 1 1 1 1 i
Area patrols 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Patral units 17 17 17 17 nfa n/a na nfa nfa nfa
Fire
Fire station 1 1 | 1 | 1 1 1 | 1
Fire engines 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Ambulances 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Public Works
Highway & Streets
Streets (mikes) 316 ile ile 3le 316 k1K IL6 3l6 316 36
Strectlights 1,998 1,998 1,998 1,998 1,998 1,998 1,998 1,998 1,998 1,998
Intersections with Traffic signals I5 13 13 135 15 13 15 I5 15 13
Watenworks
Water mains (nilcs) 40 4 4} 40 40 40 40 40 40 40
Fire hydrants 440 440 440 440 440 440 440 440 44{) 440
Storage capacity {in 1,000 gallons) 3.000 3.000 3,000 3.000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
Sewerage
Sanitary sewers (miles) 33.13 3313 3313 3313 3313 313 3313 33.13 33.13 3313
Pumping capacity (in 1,000 gallons 3,700 3,700 3,700 3,700 3,700 3,700 3,700 3,700 3,700 3,700
Storm sewers (milesy’ 0.19 (.19 0.19 0.19 0.19 0.19 0.19 019 0.19 0.19

Note:

! Except for the section referenced in this table, storm sewers in the Village are owned and serviced by the Metropolitan Water
Reclamation [istrict, a legally separate entity from the Village,

Various Village departmenis



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS
Water Fund Statistics

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2010

Water Fund statistics for the year ended April 3¢, 2G10 are as follows:

Number of Metered Customers 3,160 meters
Gallons of Water Purchases {in thousands} 498,600 gallons
Gallons of Water Billed {in thousands) 395,413 gallons

Data Source

Village Records



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS

Surety Bonds of Principal Officials

April 30, 2010
Amount of
Principal Cfficial Surety Bond
Viliage President 5 3,000
Village Clerk 3,000
Finance Director/Treasurer 50,000

Data Sourge

Village insurance coverage documents



